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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(BRE&1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAERETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

2016 2015
—B-RF —_T—1F
Revenue ($'000) WA (F7) 541,427 569,502
Profit/(loss) for the year ($'000) FERN,/ (BE)(Fr) 6,705 (16,909)
Earnings/(loss) per share - Basic (cents) BRAF, (B8 — &E& (L) 2 (@)
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) IEEEES (Fr) 10,494 15,984
Taxes paid per share (cents) FRFTE (L) 3 a
Non-current tangible assets ($'000) FERBBFREE (TIT) 584,806 597,381
Net worth ($'000) FE (F7T) 558,084 544,986
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TERHEMER (FT) 116,014 118,421
Number of shares issued BITIREK 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders PR EE 2,053 2,067
Number of personnel ETAH 539 549
[
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE %

Ramon S. Ang £
Chairman xJ&

To our shareholders,

FINANCIAL RESULTS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
registered a consolidated profit of HK$6.7 million in 2016, compared to a
consolidated loss of HK$16.9 million in 2015. As a result, net profit attributable
to equity shareholders for 2016 was HK$8.7 million, compared to a loss of
HK$16.1 million the previous year.

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$541.4 million, 4.9% lower than the
same period in 2015. Gross profit reached HK$238.3 million, slightly higher
than 2015, with a gross profit margin of 44.0%.

As of 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
amounted to HK$157.7 million (HK$148.6 million as of 31 December 2015).

Total loan as of 31 December 2016 was at HK$190.9 million, 0.1% higher than
the HK$190.7 million debt reported the prior year. Total net assets stood at
HK$558.1 million (HK$545.0 million as of 31 December 2015), with a loan-to-
equity ratio of 0.34 (31 December 2015: 0.35).
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DIVIDENDS

No final dividends will be declared for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

Operating losses were reduced by 90%, a significant achievement given Hong
Kong's slowing economy which resulted to a decline in tourist arrivals and
weaker consumption.

As disclosed in a positive profit alert announcement last 14 February 2017,
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) achieved these
improvements largely through the reduction in certain material cost and the
rationalization, re-evaluation and re-allocation of advertising expenses. Higher
rental income, as an offshoot of the restructuring of the distribution and
warehousing system, and the depreciation of the renminbi, also contributed
to this result.

Our portfolio of premium, specialty and craft beers all did well in 2016,
growing by double-digits compared to the previous year.

Kirin beer brands, which we distribute exclusively within the territory,
registered an 18% volume improvement in 2016.

San Miguel Cerveza Negra and Red Horse Beer gained a stronger foothold
in the market. San Miguel Cerveza Negra registered a 53% volume growth
over 2015, with growth equally distributed in on- and off-premise outlets. Red
Horse Beer grew 76%, helped by strong off-take at night outlets.

San Mig Light is one of the fastest growing brands in our portfolio, registering
consistent double-digit growth. Our popular “Life. Best Served Light”
campaign shifted away from product attributes to defining the brand’s image.

In the middle of the year, we launched the San Mig Light “Life. Best Served
Light” campaign. Meanwhile, we supported the world-renowned DJ Duo,
Dimitri Vegas and Like Mike, at the AsiaWorld-Expo in May 2016 and launched
a new campaign featuring Japanese model-actor Ren Ishikawa in July 2016.

Finally, for flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen, we launched the “This Time, This
Place, Belong to Us!” thematic campaign, which extended to above-the-line,
print, outdoor and social media, as well as below-the-line merchandising
and market-wide promotions. The Company also continued to support the
Hong Kong Dragon Boat Carnival organized by the Hong Kong Tourism Board
through an exclusive sponsorship.

The Company also saw growth in sales and revenue in Macau at 4% and 5%,
respectively, as well as in other export markets.

ﬂg '%\

EFEEBEBTREHE_T—RFT+A=1+—
HIEFEZ REPRE -

R¥ oA
EEE
ERBEBREASEGEREAR TR B ER
9T BEENRBNEEINERNE  £LEBE
D 90% e

E_Z—+H_A+ WAL ZEmAENES
o BBEENEAEmERAR ([ARAA]) 6
ERRAENE - KBHRBBERE—EM R
K AREEE  EFMTHNALRESHAS - M
DR EERGEAMESRSHASIA - A
MAREZEOERER -

KPENSE BENFIRERBRE_Z
—NERARN  BEFHRBEUHFMER -

MAERABRD HABBEE - R _F—XFr
HEBR —FEHIF18% LR ©

) BIRAAL B 5 S TR % » )
BUEHYER =T AR5 EE IR
ASEIR BT LIS THE » AL S DR
BRYTR « G 76%HEE -

ENRERHRMNEEASHEP —ERERER
B RIFELBRTIER - RAR[EERE
Light | 733 RE /0% B IRt 22 o 88 1 88 /0 6 F dm 8
I

Frp - ENBEHELT [EERE Lght] WEE
HEZE AN AT —XR"FRA - B
2HRERINE A DJ4EA Dimitri Vegas & Like Mike
EDMEREEENRE - BMTE_S—~F
T AP B AEEEE RN AEANEIH
HEEH -

1% o BAPTHO DR AR AR R A 0 R IR D [ UL Bk
o BT | WETEERES EREEL
RERMTEMPINES  HRRBEE UK
TRERERNEERERERETSNHEFES - &
RAMEEBREDHEBIREB T MNE B
REE-

AR FERPI I E RIBA D FIEH15 4% 2 5% 2
K- MEMEATSTRESEEER -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE3R &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

Our South China operations improved in 2016, as operating losses were
significantly reduced. Much of this improvement can be attributed to San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB"), which was able
to lower costs and grow its exports. As a result, SMGB registered a 72%
improvement in operating profit.

Meanwhile, sales volumes of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company
Limited ("GSMB") declined as the total South China beer industry contracted
and competition became tougher. This is particularly evident at night outlets,
where most of our brands compete. Sales in supermarkets also slowed
as a preference for online shopping gained ground. To this end, we began
developing our own online business channel towards the end of 2016.

To sustain visibility for San Miguel Pale Pilsen, we launched an integrated
“Heritage and Quality” campaign, which included a market-wide
merchandising blitz, social media advertising, consumer promotions, and an
updated version of the product-focused “Meta” television commercial.

For San Mig Light, we launched “SML Party Nights” in popular bars, adopting
the “Life. Best Served Light” campaign initiated in Hong Kong. A retail chain-
wide consumer promotion was also launched to help push both brands.

Last year, GSMB also started importing San Miguel Cerveza Negra and Red
Horse Beer to compete in the premium specialty beer segment. Both brands
have been performing well. At the other end of the price spectrum, in May
2016 we launched Dragon Qingchun to strengthen the equity of the Dragon
brand and create excitement in the Foshan beer market.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has always recognized its responsibilities to its stakeholders.
These include the welfare of employees and their families; its business
relationships with partners, customers, suppliers and others, and the impact
of our operations on local communities and the environment.

Since 2015, we have been publishing an Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report to provide the public with a better understanding
of how we respond to different ESG issues. The latest updates on the
Company’s ESG Report will be available on our website within three months
from the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We are especially committed to actively promoting responsible drinking. We
also continue to support charitable organizations and suitable NGOs through
financial and product support, as well as by sharing with them our time,
experience and expertise.

We are committed to protecting the environment and ensuring that
environmental standards set by government are met or exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company takes pride in its ability to recruit, develop, motivate, and
attract employees with the right skills and experience, to help it attain its
overall goals. We invest in training, seminars, mentorship and team-building
workshops to ensure that our employees are equipped with the necessary
knowledge, skills and attitude that will help them perform well.

We continue to offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry standards and to provide attractive fringe benefits, including
medical and insurance coverage and numerous paid leaves on top of legal
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year, with the exception of Code Provision A.4.1,
which states that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. At present, all of the non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and re-election at the
Annual General Meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS

Since we published our interim report on 6 September 2016, Mr. Ng Wai Sun
has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company,
effective 24 February 2017. Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company, effective 24 February
2017.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

For 2017, the Company has outlined the following objectives:

375 1) B Bk
ARAR T —LFNBIZRHE -

o In Hong Kong, we will continue the profit improvement trend by e EEF BMeEBRMERNE NG
investing in the San Miguel brand to gain volume, revenue and market B LAEANSEE - WWARNITISMEE - K
share. We will expand outlet availability and penetration using both BERERT - RMKEBF AR HERI

the direct sales and the wholesaler channel.

In South China, we intend to turn around the business by expanding
the dealership coverage while building the yield of each dealer with
market-specific programs in all the markets.

We will strengthen the brand equity of San Miguel and Dragon brands
and enhance our participation in the premium specialty segment in
key cities. We will actively promote our export business and work
towards margin improvement and cost containment.
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In pursuit of the abovementioned objectives for 2017, we shall be responsive  AEZR| AR GIR T —+F 7 B1Z  BIEREK
to the following risks that we have identified: JEE T e R E b

Some of the factors affecting Hong Kong's economy continue to linger.
The strengthening of the U.S. dollar may result to a further decline in
tourists, which may affect industry consumption.

The cost of aluminum and cartons are rising, and this will have an
effect on our overall production costs.

Furthermore, the Hong Kong government will be imposing a recycling
levy on glass beverage containers. When this measure is put in place,
prices for our products in glass bottles may be affected, which will in
turn impact consumption.

The Hong Kong government is also proposing a ban on the commercial
sale of alcohol to people aged below 18. While the Company supports
the legislation, how the actual legislation will be implemented and
how it might inadvertently restrict trading to consumers 18 years of
age and above will still need to be studied.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

o As the largest provincial economy in China, Guangdong is likely
to be the most affected when it comes to changes in economic
policies. China’s economy is expected to continue its slowdown due
to falling private sector investments and decelerated growth of its
manufacturing sector.

Furthermore, China’s continued reliance on policy stimulus measures,
with rapid credit growth and still-elevated corporate debts, raises the
risk of a sharper slowdown.

Other potential risks include the depreciation of the renminbi as well
as uncertainties related to the new US administration’s trade and
foreign policies. Finally, as in Hong Kong, the cost of aluminum and
carton is showing an increasing trend; and may put pressure on our
production cost.

Moving forward, the Company reiterates its commitment to maximizing
shareholder value and enhancing and consolidating our sales and marketing
strength. We are confident that we have put in place well thought-out
strategies and plans that will address the challenges the Company is facing,
as well as allow us to maximize the value of every opportunity.

Apart from the sales and marketing strategies, we also have various new
policies, guidelines, systems and procedures to facilitate efficient and
effective cost management, sustainable environmental management and
responsible social engagement.

In closing, we wish to express our sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors
for their guidance and support. We also wish to thank our employees for their

dedication and hard work, and most of all, our shareholders, customers and
consumers for their continued support.

L.

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

24 February 2017
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

To be presented at the Fifty-fourth Annual General Meeting of shareholders to
be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two Pacific
Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 28 April 2017 at 3:00 p.m.

The directors submit their Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the "Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu
Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:

HHREBN -_T—FOA -+ NBTF=FIE
REEZETREREALHES _HESEREN
RNBERBEEBRBTZFEFL THRERREAFAK

& HiEx -

EEg ANMBEERREZEHE_T—R"F+_HA
=T ALEFEZFREEEZMBRE -

FEERME

ERENEERAR AR ([ARF) 2—HRE
BEMRZNRR - M ERENEBEEMNE
RBEEHDBNERRIRE —+ ) \SREHSES
Nig -

FERY

ARBZEBRGREER D HGE - BRI
FKEE - SMBRR 2 T BEBREMAEHEHN
M HmAMEES

BERAMBEREARRNEMEAR ([RNEHE])
ZEERIAHT - BN IRARMIFES o

FEERRUER
U TR AAT R E BE P REER S Bl A%
54t RIS

Percentage of the Group’s total

HAREE
The largest customer BARF 35.14%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAE 60.93%
The largest supplier BARIER 8.59%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BOARERERT 28.65%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”) and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr.
Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto N.
Huang, Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto**=**** Mr. Takeshi Wada, Mr. Reynato S.
Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago have beneficial interests to the extent that
they have equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of the
San Miguel Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in these major customers or suppliers.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, including the analysis
using financial key performance indicators, and the outlook of the Group’s
business are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section from pages 7 to
12 of this Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
which faced the Group in 2016 can be found in the Chairman’s Statement,
including the financial risks mentioned in note 23 to the financial statements.
There were no important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2016.

The Company defines stakeholders as all those who affect, and/or are
affected by, its business. It embraces both internal and external stakeholders,
ranging from employees, trade partners, shareholders, suppliers, government
and local communities. The Company believes that engaging stakeholders
is crucial for the sustainability of its business, as this does not just help
the Company understand the possible risks and opportunities to its
business, but also makes possible the actual mitigation of the risks and
the full comprehension of the opportunities to its business. The Company
also communicates with them through various channels to ensure that
its stakeholders are made aware of and understand its business and/or
products.

The Company endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates
its business. During the year ended 31 December 2016 (“the year under
review"), there was no material non-compliance in relation to air and
greenhouse gas emission, discharges into water and land; and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. The Company endeavors to
continually improve the management of its operations to prevent pollution
and minimize waste. The Company also endeavors to continually improve
the proper management and usage of the different Company resources, and
the management of its operations to prevent pollution and minimize waste,
and is committed to continuously train and encourage all its employees to be
more environmentally conscious.

FEERRHIER (5

BREXHEEEIN  SEF REZBBALH
EABREEMAREARRRABEAN CELZ
ARBBERARNFREAREREZFIETF X
HrEm 2 T -

#Eli R

EEERBTKEBRE T —R"F+_A=1+—
BIEFEZ RERE -

KRB R RIA

BERAEEFARRNTEERR  BRERVH
BRI ETHON - ARASENEER
PHEAFHRETENREN [XFERSE | PR - 53
RASEESE N EZRR K TARRROMAE
[EEHE] PR SFERHBHRERM 235K
BHeRER - E_ZT-RNFHRFERERY
BRLHAKREEVENEREN -

ARABFHNEEBERABBLTEN,HZAR
NAIXBEENAER - ERERBMIN R0
S REE - EHBH - R HER - BF
AR - RABEERNENSBHH X
MREERIFFEE  N2ENMERHRA
NEIEMA AN RBRNKE  hEBALQE
ERBERRMIEDIEEBERS - ARRIE
BRERBEFNEETERUBRBMTY B
BT RRERSA,HER -

RRARBAREELZENRT RFT—RF
TZA=+—BLFRE (RBEFE] A - &R
AREREBEN - FKMLEHEPS - UARBE
MEZRREVHELTENFEERNEERB
e ARRBAFBEREEBREEEIAR RITR
W HEBEZEMRBIRE - KRB RBAFEREL
EEARTRERNERREREEENE RS
AU HERDRIKE - XEARFEFINIR
BfEETIUERSEENRRER -

15



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

During the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In
addition, discussion on the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) is included in the Corporate Governance
Report and discussion on the Company'’s financial statements’ compliance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) are included in note 1 to the
financial statements.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$53,938 (2015: HK$10,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22(c) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto****** who was appointed
as non-executive director on 29 April 2016 and Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta who
was appointed as independent non-executive director on 24 February 2017,
all of the directors served as such for the full year.

Mr. Teruyuki Daino resigned as non-executive director on 30 March 2016 due
to his new assignment in the Kirin group of companies which will require
more of his time. Mr. Ng Wai Sun resigned as independent non-executive
director on 24 February 2017 due to the needs of his family and his other
business engagements which require more of his time and attention.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago, retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta who was appointed as director after the last Annual
General Meeting, retires from the office of director in accordance with Article
96 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

—
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEATESE

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries REZZZE—"F+_A=+—HILEFEsH=
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 or during the Z—+F—B—AEAHEAAIEHRT - AR
period from 1 January 2017 to the date of this report are available on the BARQAHBARESESNESZHZEHNAL ]
Company's website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk. 48k - #84k A& info.sanmiguel.com.hk o

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS EEZERS

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2016 had the following 1% (FEH M EAE &) FE 32 KB EHEF o EEE
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies, zZFEEMEEME R —AE+=-A=+—
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the B AAREENEBRBAEARAT ~ EERA
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the 7 - B AT REMHEAT (TER(EELH
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the  &{&F1)) BEITIRAZ BEEZRNAT ¢

SFO:

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (1) EBITRAES
Number of ordinary shares in the Company
ARTZEBERZBROEA

Number of % of total
shares held issued shares

HERTRG
BR#E HWECEI

David K. P. Li 12,000,000 3.21%

Number of common shares
of 1 Philippine peso each in
Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc.

Top Frontier
Investment Holdings, Inc.

BREE1FEE
BRZEBRZRAHE
Total
Direct Indirect number of % of total
ownership ownership share held issued shares
HERTRG
BERSE BiEEE BSREE#AH #HA3zESs K
Ramon S. Ang 232578 75,887 86,658,351 86,734,238 25.907003%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SRR — 364 364 0.000109%
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 492 850 1,342 0.000401%
Roberto N. Huang =ER — 3,039 3,039 0.000908%
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — 500 500 0.000149%
Carmelo L. Santiago Jicyid= 500 — 500 0.000149%
Ramon G. Torralba TEEE — 260 260 0.000078%
I
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) EucHiEz (@)

INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) ERITREAZER (B)

Number of shares in
San Miguel Corporation

1

18

EQBRARNZBROEE
Par Value
Types of (Philippine Number of % of total
Shares pesos) shares held issued shares
H{E HERTR G
A% 5l (GEREHR) EREA Y EDLE
Ramon S. Ang E=325°¢ Common 5.00 374,381,669* 9.718470%
=yl
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SRR common 5.00 3,645%* 0.000095%
B
Prefe{rr%cﬁi 5.00 10,000%* 0.000260%
=]
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta common 5.00 224*** (0.000006%
=y il
Roberto N. Huang =ER common 5.00 42,397** 0.001101%
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno Comg@n 5.00 5,000%* 0.000130%
[=]
Carmelo L. Santiago = Ccommon 5.00 5,000%* 0.000130%
e
=]
Ramon G. Torralba EE common 5.00 2,600%* 0.000067%
=
* No. of shares in SMC held as direct ownership: 757,873 shares

RENERREERE 2 RMHEE - 757,873%
No. of shares in SMC held as indirect ownership: 373,623,796 shares
RENBARIRERE 2 RHER : 373,623,796 1%

> Held directly
BHEEA

e No. of shares in SMC held as direct ownership: 220 shares
RENBERAREERE ZRMHEE - 2200k
No. of shares in SMC held as indirect ownership: 4 shares
RENBARIEERB ZBRHEE - 4%

Number of common shares of
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
EHEHER A FSREE1EERERE
ZEBRRZROEE

Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRG
E=dive G| HEEDLE
Ramon S. Ang B 5,000%*** 0.000033%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba FEE 5,000%*** 0.000033%
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 10,000% **** 0.000065%
Takashi Hayashi RFE 52 5,000%*** 0.000033%
Roberto N. Huang =ER 5,000%*** 0.000033%
Katsuhiko Matsumoto MATE 5,000%*** 0.000033%
Carmelo L. Santiago FEHE= 5,000%**** 0.000033%
xokkk corporate interest
AR
*xxxx - held directly
BEEE
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued) ERZziEg @
(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (2) RIEERPZER
Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options KRBHETFESIRIEENRAR 2B
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option S EEERE RS B AT 2 TR
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during R tn e RERER -_ZE—XRF+ A
the year and as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: =T BREFREENRRARIZERE
BT -

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EHERTIZBRE
Number Number
of options of options Number Number
outstanding granted/ of options of options
Exercise atthe (exercised) (lapsed) outstanding
Date Exercise price per heginning during during at the end
granted period up to option of the year the year the year of the year
(Philipping pesos)

EmgiL/
EARHERTE (BffF)  FREAN) FEREAGRE
RAR®  BLOGERS SROEE  CRREHE  CRREBE  <RRERR  ZBREEA
(FRER%)

Common (par value LE

of 5 Philippine (SHEES

pesos each): FRERZ)
Ramon S. Ang BEY 26/06/2008 26/06/2016 4050 765,603 - (765,603) -

25/06/2009 25/06/2017 58.05 587,55 - - 587,55

Carlos Antonio HER 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 41,55 - - 4155

M.Berba
Ramon G. Torralha HER 16/12/2010 16/12/2018 12033 8991 - - 8991

|
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company; its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its
provisions are not avoided by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
remained in force as of the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES
The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s

issued shares at 31 December 2016 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
shares in issue:

FERRREMREARKGZER

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—H  KRAREETS
IERRREEHITERRZ 5% A EMARRRIE %
TR MR

Ordinary shares

R
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Corporation (note 1) EHB AR (st 245,720,800 65.78%
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1) AR &tk (MIEE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1) SRR AR (BRE1) 245,720,800 65.78%
San Miguel Brewing International Limited & BB AR AR (FEE1)

(note 1) 245,720,800 65.78%
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1) AR AR (M) 245,720,800 65.78%
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2) RIEHE (58) BRAR (E2) 23,703,000 6.34%
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (note 2) FRIIMEEXRER AR (H:E2) 23,703,000 6.34%

Notes:

M

22

Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company, SMC, Kirin Holdings Company,
Limited (“Kirin”) (a principal shareholder of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB")),
SMB, and San Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all deemed
to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia Corporation
Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of Top Frontier, SMC
and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has a
controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

GG

M

R Top Frontier - A& KZIER AR - £ H#E
N BB g (BB (RENE
BERAR ([ENRER]) 2EBRE) &8
BEENRER =02 — U EZEERE £
EHBEEENEHEBER AR ([E£ 72
BB |) 21 iEes K £ 0 BB B A i
FMARAR ([SLmF]) 2 ZEREz - %tk Top
Frontier ~ &£ 7482 7] « BEEE « A 7B MR & A&
TN B B S W AR A R B B S i R A A AR
NE)ZEEMA PR 2 o

) Conroy Assets Limited, which holds 13,624,600 shares of the Company, and  (2) Conroy Assets Limited# B 2 2 713,624,600
Hamstar Profits Limited, which holds 10,078,400 shares of the Company, are % % 15 &% Hamstar Profits Limited 5 & A& 2 &)
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") 10,078,400 Bf&1n - BEARIEZE ()
and CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”). BRAR ([RE]) ERINZEXBRAF

(TRM)) zHE2EREHB AT -
By virtue of the SFO, CKH and CK Hutchison are deemed to be interested in 1RIE <E§‘%‘?&,ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%1ﬁﬂ}> ’EE&E%M’:J%EHE_Z%
the shares of the Company held by Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits #4A i Conroy Assets Limited & Hamstar Profits
Limited. Limited 3578 2 N A AR D 2 e o
[ ]
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. General Managers’ commission has not been paid by the
Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr.
Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Takashi Hayashi, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Katsuhiko
Matsumoto****** Mr. Takeshi Wada, Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago are interested parties to the above contract and to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions below to the extent that
they have equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of
SMB, SMBIL, SMC and Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company of Neptunia.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party, and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest (other than Mr.
Ramon S. Ang who has a substantial interest in the shares of Top Frontier
and SMC as disclosed in the section “Directors Interests” in this report, and
who accordingly abstained from the voting on the entering into of these
transactions), subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

FERRREMNREMBRGZER (5
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Q)]

REX 7 RSHERERX S

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1) EBEEHEEESEFBENRERERS
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group REa SHEFTEHLER
In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered into an BSEA FmiRE  AATEE QB ATR
agreement with SMC on 7 March 2013 (the “Agreement”) with a view —E—=F=AtHFTZ—HOiHHEE ([1H
to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing HE)MMEFTHBERN T —NFE—F—
connected transactions from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XRFT+A=+—H#TEHE
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreements SEBORERERS  Zh %Zﬂ%?f\
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6 December 2007, BHERA-_ZEELF+_ANH  —ZTZ
11 May 2009 and 15 October 2010 in respect of such trade-related NERA+—BR-ZZE—ZTF+ATHA
continuing connected transactions. BAQT] Eﬁiijj ARG B8 G B
WIS EREZ SN HEER -
The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected mEE (EEEBESEENSERERS
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by FIERXSER) ER-_ZE—=FA
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the T AEHRARRM R EERIRKE A EE L
Ccompany held on 19 April 2013. AR ERILAE ©
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following RAFERN > REEBREBEHREZSETUT
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year. HE S EMNIFERELSS -
2016 2016
—RE ZE—RF
Actual Cap
BH LBR
Continuing connected transactions BEBERS HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Purchase of packaging materials by the Group ~ AEERAHEE
from the San Miguel Group BEBEME 237 97,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the Group AEEREHEEEE
from the San Miguel Group AN 2,283 7,200
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic AEBRAENEBRHE
beverage products by the Group BB REE R IEEBHER D
to the San Miguel Group, provided Em ZEmMTENIEREHEE
that such sales or distribution of (FE A EERR A REHERIN)
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through
SMB
190,278 303,000
——
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that

such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of

the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third

parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the foregoing trade-related continuing connected
transactions as set out in the Agreement during the 2016 financial
year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the Company, (ii)
were not entered into in all material respects in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions, (i) had exceeded
the caps disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8
March 2013 and in the circular to shareholders dated 28 March 2013,
and (iv) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the

pricing policies of the Group.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Agreement on 1 January 2017,
the Company entered into an agreement with SMC on 4 February
2016 with a view to further renewing the agreement to carry out the
trade-related continuing connected transactions from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019 under the same terms and conditions as those
under the agreements entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6
December 2007, 11 May 2009, 15 October 2010 and 7 March 2013 in

respect of such trade-related continuing connected transactions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited ("GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited
("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by
SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business
operations of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (a
member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB
a licence to use their respective trademarks upon establishment
of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement” and the “GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sublicense Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures which are
for more than three years, are on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated under such
agreements are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
as awhole.

REX 7 RISHEMER SR (#)

(2)

B 2 N e R R A b SR R R A AT I
B EBERS

EMNENEHERAR ([BINEN]) A
ENE(ER) BRAR ([EHBRER])
HRE N A R ([ BN B RR]) L 2B
Ba2NmE YHAENREREEMNEH
B9 Bl 70% K 30% o 4 H I8 E R A
NAVEE2989% 2B AR - ME
] RE S BR BN R S LA BN AE 2 EE KRR A
MAKRRRZEEAL - BAEETEM
HEhZE% EHBBEERAR ([E£H
BIRR ) (A NEEZKBAR]) HENEH
R B F BN A ) — B - REM
ENRIEERMNENERER S ZEIE
([ 5 Bl B 77 Bl BR P AR R 5 1o e I N 12
BRI R R ) o

R DB ERAS SRS - ARE IR
ENEEZETEAMKE QBT EASF
A - (VA RREmA (£ ERF]
ZEE2EWBAR) 7132 S B
AR K () E D ER A B (&
h@RRzEERE2ENB AR FILZ2E
e B R A A A h e

EX (BREFUTES) RRENERR
R RE © oA B AT - N
BEBR B E (R [ £ ) REERT
ek ) BN R E R IR R g (B4
BERZR=FZRBE) ZGKE— KA
FEF - BRTEE  MgI#ET 25
RBHERNRA MR EREN A -

27



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 were HK$1,702,000 and HK$157,000
respectively (2015: HK$2,116,000 and HK$151,000).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders and as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions in respect of
the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement during the 2016 financial year (i) had not been
approved by the Board of the Company, (ii) were not entered into
in all material respects in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions, and (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 19 September 2007.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2017, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 28 October 2016 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged. An announcement was made by the Company on
28 October 2016 in this respect.
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San Miguel Cerveza
Negra gained a
stronger foothold in
the market, registering
a 53% volume growth
over 2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3)

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials and other materials from the
San Miguel Group during the year, which amounted to HK$193,000
(2015: HK$79,000). The Group also sold raw materials and packaging
materials to subsidiaries of SMC during the year, which amounted to
HK$13,000 (2015: HK$380,000). These transactions are exempt from
all the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements according to Chapter 14A.76(1) of the Listing
Rules (De minimis transactions). Also, as set out in note 25(a) to
the financial statements, interest expense of HK$5,454,000 (2015:
HK$4,373,000) was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding
company and advertising and promotion subsidy of HK$21,038,000
(2015: HK$24,895,000) was received from an intermediate holding
company for promotion of certain brands in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"). These transactions are also exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirement
according to the Chapter 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions stated above.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a
non-contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong
Kong Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund'’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on
the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the
Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of independent
actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually
triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2017 and the results were as follows:

(1) the latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was prepared by
independent qualified staff of Willis Towers Watson. In the actuarial
valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 4% per
annum; long-term salary escalation of 5% per annum; mortality rates
under the 2015 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60
years, and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to 60
years.

2) the unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$78,136,000 as
at 1 January 2017.

(3) the minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the

Fund was 18.0% of salaries for 2017, 2018 and 2019.

(4) the solvency deficit was HK$1,032,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 99% covered by the Fund's assets, as at 1 January 2017.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s working capital at 31 December 2016 was net current assets of
HK$154,362,000 compared with HK$162,371,000 as at 31 December 2015.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2016 were HK$157,719,000 (2015: HK$148,600,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2017.

LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company. Total
borrowings at 31 December 2016 for the Group were HK$190,858,000 (2015:
HK$190,747,000).

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 19 to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 140 of the Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 37 to 52 of the Annual
Report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2017

*xxxxx Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto has tendered his resignation as director of the
Company effective 1 April 2017. Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa was nominated to fill in
the vacated office of Mr. Katsuhiko Matsumoto at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.
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For flagship San Miguel
Pale Pilsen, we launched
the “This Time, This
Place, Belong to Us!”
thematic campaign.
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COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining compliance with statutory
and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The board and the senior management of the
Company ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect
the interests of the shareholders of the Company. These include a board
comprised of high calibre members, board committees and effective internal
systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code throughout
year under review as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for
the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company's Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2016, the board comprised twelve Directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 54 to 61 of this report under the “Directors and
Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company's strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief finance
officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board meetings
to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management,
statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept detailed minutes
of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At the meetings, the
directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company,
monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and interim
results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters are
delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors, and
all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in
the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are sent in full to all
directors at least three days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in
which the individual was a board member or board committee member (as
the case may be).
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Scheduled Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual Extraordinary
board committee committee  committee General (e
meetings  meetings  meetings  meetings Meeting Meeting
FEEEe® ENZEE® FMZEe REZEE Ve e
L ] 8 g BEAE 15RIKE
Independent BUFYTES
non-executive directors
David KP Li Gk 0/ 02 02 0 0 0
Ng Wai Sun RH 3 2/(4) 1/2) 1/2) 1/(1) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Carmelo L. Santiago ik 3/4) 2/2) 1/2) 1/(1) 1/(1) 1/(1)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 3/14) N/A N/A 101 101 107
Cheng C.Man William AR
(Alternate to David K P L) (ZEIEZEHEE) 4/8) 2/(2) 2/(2) 1) 1) 1)
Executive director BiTER
Ramon G. Torralba HERE
(Managing Director) (#772%) 44 N/A N/A N/A (1) 111)
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BEY(2E) 3/(4) N/A N/A N/A 1) 1)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba JEBET
(Deputy Chairman) (BIf) 4/() N/A 2/2) N/A 1101 1)
May (Michelle) WM. Chan X 2/4) N/A N/A N/A 0 0/1)
Teruyuki Daino RER= (1 110 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Takashi Hayashi e 4/4) N/A N/A 110 110 1)
Roberto N. Huang BER 3/(4) N/A 2/(2) N/A 1) 1)
Katsuhiko Matsumoto RERE vl 313 N/A N/A N/A 1) 110)
Takeshi Wada MBR 4/(8) N/A N/A N/A ) 10
Notes: Fi3E
©) Resigned as non-executive director on 30 March 2016. (1) RZZE—XF=A=+HBEEERTESHS -
) Appointed as non-executive director on 29 April 2016. ) RZE—RNFOAZTNBEZERFHTE
o
@) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 24 February 2017. @) RITE—tF AT NBEBAB I NITE
ERAS o
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors are
independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be found in
the section entitled “The Board"” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to retirement,
rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE (Continued) BERBEHBIN (&)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIYEHITES
The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled ARAREZIEHITEETH AT ST - B ERER

professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2016, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 128 to
136.

FEAFXANBREBRNGRIODEEAR - BF
MR EEXAMBREEZENHAE  BRAS
BUMNERRHABAREETEE ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ARABEESENRRBRETTABRED
BENHFER2EMEE Qﬁ%%‘?%hﬁﬂﬁ‘k&
HAipse I REMRE - LR RN HIE - RE
RRBBER R AR B EF &R ©

BRBEIUFITES  SFHRAARRERLE

S e RIE ETRBIE NGB AIES] - AR
ARRERESHERBELAL
BUESRAEENR AEHAERREESLH
FENBRTSFBUERER - WETHEHAN
RENMEE - BERHEARBN -
EFHUGRRNRE
EEARBEARAEARNRQEFE AN MR

RFFEN—DERRRANEE - EFERR - B
BHRRDBRBBLR G TR - ARRIE
BEESLEEENZEM A2 FBELE
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ BEEERIEBREHEMSHE
B-RIE—AR"FTA=1T—H BEZEKE
EEWEHAA  LEEMNERZFEHFRIBTRAERE
RARNFFRHELLNEN - Bt - EXEREE
RELERRARRBOTHRE

INEZEMREBY B RENETHNE 1288
FE136 B [ B 28RS | 215 -

41



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 13

s UE
== #E(%

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company engaged an external professional firm to perform a High Level
Risk Assessment for the Group and enhance the Group’s framework for
its risk management and internal control system. Key business objectives
and risk parameters were updated and determined to assess the level of
inherent risk. Based on these business objectives and risk parameters, the
key risks of the Group and improvement opportunities to address these risks
were identified. The Group’s internal controls in place were also tested and
evaluated so as to determine its effectiveness and the level of residual risk.

The Group's risk management framework is based on the “Three Lines of
Defense” model.

1. The Management team is responsible for the ongoing identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting of risks and opportunities in
their respective areas; the planning and implementation of actions
to manage these risks; and escalation of these risks to the Managing
Director and Business Control team that exceed the tolerance limits.

2. The Business Control team conducts periodic review and challenge
of top risks impacting the Group's strategic objectives; escalates
the top risks to senior management and through them, to the Audit
Ccommittee and the board for their review; and facilitates the risk
process.

3. The Group Internal Audit Function provides assurance over the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage risk.

For 2016, the board has conducted a review of the Company'’s internal
control systems, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions and assessed the effectiveness of internal
control by considering reviews performed by the audit committee, executive
management, external advisor and internal auditors. It considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control system was effective and
adequate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

The board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing their effectiveness. However, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As a member of a group with multiple listed issuers, the Group shares with
the San Miguel group’s resources in carrying out its internal audit function.
Its internal audit is performed by the internal audit function of its parent
company, San Miguel Brewery Inc. The internal audit function directly reports
to the audit committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

Q) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2 reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully cognizant of its disclosure obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
has also included in its Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions and
Dealings (“Code of Conduct”) and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information. The Company’s
Code of Conduct is further discussed in the “Code Of Conduct On Directors'
Securities Transactions” section of this report.
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SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS EENXRE

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management; corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of the directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Dr.
the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee. The audit
committee met two times in 2016 with full minutes kept by the company
secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at these
meetings is shown in the table presented above. Mr. Ng Wai Sun resigned as
audit committee member on 24 February 2017, and Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta
was appointed as audit committee member on 24 February 2017.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.

In 2016, the audit committee’s oversight function with respect to risk
management systems was enhanced by including, as part of the specific
responsibilities of the audit committee in its terms of reference, the
responsibility to discuss risk management systems with management to
ensure effectiveness of the system and to consider major investigation
findings on risk management and management’s response to such findings.

In 2016, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

Q) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor;

2) monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company's policy on the engagement of an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Company'’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems to ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have effective systems;
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2016, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by: (Continued)

(6) ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors
and that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring the effectiveness of the audit function;

7) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the
management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code on the
audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax advisory work and risk management advisory work)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted
to HK$3,779,000 (2015: HK$3,744,000) and HK$500,000 (2015: HK$Nil),
respectively.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE (B)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES
For the year under review, the remuneration committee comprised three  REEBEFENRN > HHEESK ERIE=(1IF L IF
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P.  #{7EE - (B : THES T - REFEE LT
Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive  &4%4£) - &Eﬁh#%ﬂﬁ%% (BN : glEE R 44
directors, namely, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang. REERE®LEL) -FWEEedh (B IFHTT
The remuneration committee was chaired by an independent non-executive %%E&%&%ﬁﬁ%i%ﬁgfia* RZZE—RF - FW

director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The remuneration committee met twice in 2016 with
full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each
committee member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.
Mr. Ng Wai Sun resigned as the chairman of the remuneration committee on
24 February 2017, and Mr. Reynato S. Puno was appointed as the chairman of
the remuneration committee on 24 February 2017.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

Q) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors,

2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay

environment; and

) comply with the CG Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
o determining executive and director remuneration policy;,
o determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;

J reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as

appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EERE® (&)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) TMEES (&)

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the managing director and key senior executives.
As recommended, no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2016.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the nomination committee comprised one non-
executive director, namely Mr. Takashi Hayashi and four independent non-
executive directors: Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Reynato S.
Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive director, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination
committee met once in 2016 with full minutes kept by the company secretary.
Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting is shown in
the table presented above. Mr. Ng Wai Sun resigned as nomination committee
member on 24 February 2017, and Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta was appointed as
nomination committee member on 24 February 2017.

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
for regulating the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company
in so far as they are applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination
committee’s terms of reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders
in ensuring that the board comprises individuals who are best able to
discharge the responsibilities of directors having regard to the law and the
highest standards of governance by:

(1 assessing the skills required on the board,

2 from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board,;

) establishing the process for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the board as a whole;

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates
for appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

—
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

2 identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors,

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer;

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company'’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct based on the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). The terms of the Code of Conduct
are no less exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of
Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including
the directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company who, because
of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who have
confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS ERERAYEE

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company also published its ESG Report on its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
It is the initial effort of the Company to communicate to our stakeholders in a
broad manner the relevant environmental, social and governance initiatives
that the Company has made in reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
The 2016 ESG Report will be published in the Company’s website no later than
three months after the publication of the Company's annual report.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of twenty
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To ensure that the business of the Group is conducted in the highest
standards of fairness, transparency and accountability, the Group has
its Whistleblowing Policy, which establishes procedures and channels
through which the directors, employees and other interested parties
may communicate concerns, in confidence, about any misconduct or
improprieties affecting the Group. The complete text of the Whistleblowing
Policy has been posted on the Company website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition
as provided by Sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from shareholders of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Requests may consist of several documents in like form. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form,
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. The directors
must, within twenty-one days after the date on which they become subject
to the requirement, call an extraordinary general meeting which must be
held on a date not more than twenty-eight days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the
general meeting, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves call an extraordinary general meeting. The meeting must
be called for a date not more than three months after the date on which the
directors become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a relevant right to vote; or not less than fifty shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may:

— circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of a general meeting, a statement of not more than 1000 words with
respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting; or (b) other business to be dealt with at that
meeting; or

— request the Company to give, to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (Continued)

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted, no later than seven days before the date of
the general meeting, to the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination
Form with the required supporting documents, (b) the candidate’s resume;
and (c) a written statement signed by the candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; (i) the candidate’s written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data; and (iii) confirmation
that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to
act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and, if applicable,
independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company'’s Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERITHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee
Takashi HAYASHI

Roberto N. HUANG

Katsuhiko MATSUMOTO
Takeshi WADA

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Alonzo Q. ANCHETA

David LI Kwok-po, GBM™, JP

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

William CHENG Chuk Man, Alternate to David LI Kwok-po, GBwm, JP

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, aged 63, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10 June 2005
and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November 1998. He is
the Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc., the ultimate parent company of the Company (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Petron Corporation (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Vice Chairman,
President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC”) (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of SMC Global Power Holdings Corp. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and the Chairman of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.).
Mr. Ang also holds the following positions: the Vice Chairman of Ginebra San
Miguel Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange)
and San Miguel Pure Foods Company Inc. (the shares of which are listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange), and Chairman of Petron Malaysia Refining &
Marketing Berhad (the shares of which are listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock
Exchange). Mr. Ang is also the Chairman, President and/ or Director of various
subsidiaries of SMC. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Far Eastern University.
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Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, aged 52, was appointed as Deputy
Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company on 27
August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16 April
2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), and a Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Commissioner of
PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares of which are listed on the Indonesia Stock
Exchange), a Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel
Holdings (Thailand) Ltd., San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and various
other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Berba has over 30 years of experience
in general management, finance, strategic planning, and corporate structuring
initiatives. Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained
a Master’s degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from the
Wharton School of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master's
degree in Japanese Business Studies from Japan America Institute of
Management Science & Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, aged 60, was appointed as an executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company with effect from 15 January 2013.
Mr. Torralba was the Vice President and Manager for Export Development of
San Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery
Inc.) since 2007. He was also a Director of San Miguel (Thailand) Company,
Ltd. from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President and Commercial Director of San
Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd. from 2004 to 2007. He was also Assistant
Vice President-Consultant for Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd., San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co. Ltd. and San Miguel (Baoding) Brewery
Co. Ltd. of the Beer Division of San Miguel Corporation from 2002-2004.
Mr. Torralba graduated from Zamboanga A.E. Colleges with a degree of
Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in Accounting. He also attended the
Management Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management
(International School of Business and Management) in the Philippines in 1991.
Mr. Torralba is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Philippine
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Alonzo Q. ANCHETA, aged 84, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 February 2017. He is currently
an independent director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is the President of Zobella & Co. (A.Q.
Ancheta & Partners): Trademark & Patent Attorneys and the Co-Founding
Partner/ Senior Adviser of Quasha Ancheta Pefia & Nolasco Law Offices. He
is also the Chairman and President of Oglivy & Mather Philippines, Inc., the
President of Growe Investments Ltd., a Member of the Board of Trustees and
Corporate Secretary of St. Luke's Medical Center, and the Director of PTFC
Redevelopment Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange). Mr. Ancheta also provided service for the Philippine
Government as the Administrator of National Tobacco Administration (1987 -
1990). Mr. Ancheta graduated from the University of Manila with a Bachelor’'s
degree in Arts (Magna cum Laude) in 1953 and a Bachelor’s degree in Laws
(Cum laude) in 1957. He is a lawyer (A.B., LL.B) by profession, with practice
areas in intellectual property law and commercial/corporate law. He is also a
member of various organizations, including Intellectual Property Association
of the Philippines (Council Adviser, 1998- present), International Trademark
Association, International Association for the Protection of Intellectual
Property, LAWASIA, Inter-Pacific Bar Association, ASEAN Law Association
(Philippine National Committee, 1986-present; Vice Chair, 2001- present),
ASEAN Intellectual Property Association, U.K. Anti-Counterfeiting Group,
American Chamber of Commerce of the Philippines, Canadian Chamber
of Commerce of the Philippines, Philippines-Japan Society, Inc., Jaycees
International (Senator) and For Love of Mother Earth, Inc..

Ms. May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee, aged 52, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Takashi HAYASHI, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 25 April 2014. Mr. Hayashi is the Executive Financial
Advisor and a Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San
Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties
Inc. and Brewery Landholdings, Inc.. Mr. Hayashi served in the Kirin group of
companies in various capacities. Mr. Hayashi graduated from Keio University
with a Bachelor's degree in Economics in 1989. He is a Chartered Member of
the Securities Analysts Association of Japan.

Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, aged 68, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and President of San
Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange
Corp.). He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited, and
the Chairman and President of Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc.,
and Brewery Landholdings, Inc.. Mr. Huang graduated from Mapua Institute
of Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
and completed academic requirements for a Master's degree in Business
Administration from De La Salle University. He also attended the Nagoya
International Training Center, Japan International Cooperation Agency Grant
for Metal Works Engineering and Numerical Control Machines course.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI KwoKk-po, GBV, GBS, OBE, JF, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier),
Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie),
Hon. DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, FCIArb, Officier de I'Ordre
de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising
Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur,
aged 77, was appointed on 22 March 1991. Sir David is an independent non-
executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed
in Hong Kong), and is an independent non-executive Director of Guangdong
Investment Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited and Vitasoy
International Holdings Limited (all listed in Hong Kong). He is also a Director of
Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited. He was a Director of CaixaBank, S.A.
(listed in Spain), and an independent non-executive Director of SCMP Group
Limited (now known as Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited). Sir David is a
member of the Council of the Treasury Markets Association. He is Founding
Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University in Hong Kong Limited,
Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and
Macau Command and Chairman of the Executive Committee of St. James'
Settlement. He was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from
1985 t0 2012.
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Mr. Katsuhiko MATSUMOTO, aged 53, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 29 April 2016. Mr.
Matsumoto is the Executive Financial Advisor and Director of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.).
He is also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited and San
Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited. Mr. Matsumoto served in the Kirin group of
companies in various capacities. Mr. Matsumoto graduated from Waseda
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1987.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, aged 76, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and Nomination Committee member of the Company
from 8 November 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
from February 24, 2017. Mr. Puno is an independent Director of San Miguel
Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange)
since 2011, Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc. (the shares of which are listed
on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and Marcventure Holdings, Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and an Independent
commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares of which are listed on
the Indonesia Stock Exchange). He is also the President of the Philippine
Bible Society, Chairman of the Gerry Roxas Foundation, Chairman of the
Environmental Heroes Foundation, Vice Chairman of World Vision and GMA
Kapuso Foundation, and a Director of The New Standard newspaper. Mr. Puno
served as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from 6 December
2006 until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He also served previously as an
Associate Justice of the Supreme Court, Associate Justice of the Court of
Appeals and Appellate Justice of the Intermediate Appellate Court. Mr. Puno
completed his Bachelor of Laws from the University of the Philippines in 1962,
and has a Master of Laws degree from the University of California in Berkeley
(1968) and a Master in Comparative Law degree from the Southern Methodist
University, Dallas, Texas (1967).

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, aged 74, is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an
independent Director of the following companies: San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a
company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.), and San Miguel
Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange). Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of several branches
of Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines and a Director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a
Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a Director of
the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005 and was a former
independent director of Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. (@ company listed in
the Philippine Stock Exchange until its voluntary delisting in November 2016).
Having over 40 years of directorate positions in various companies in the
Philippines and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods,
beverages, publication, properties, power and banking industries.
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Mr. Takeshi WADA, aged 56, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 19 April 2013. Mr. Wada is a Director
and the Executive Vice President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited.
He is also a Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel
Holdings (Thailand) Limited and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and
a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (the shares of which are listed on
the Jakarta and Surabaya Stock Exchanges). He also served in the Kirin group
of companies in various capacities. Mr. Wada graduated from University of
Tokyo (Faculty of Law) in 1984.

Mr. William CHENG Chuk Man, aged 57, is Group Chief Financial Officer
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. He is currently a Director of The Hong Kong
Settlers Housing Corporation Limited. He was previously a member of the
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) during the period from 1998 to
2007. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Sydney in Australia, and a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
degree from the University of Birmingham in Britain. He is a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. TORRALBA
Managing Director

John K.L. CHEUNG
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Richard W.K. CHAN
General Sales Manager (appointed on 18 April 2016)

Eric PK. LAM
Marketing Director

Ric W.T. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Logistics

CK.HO
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven CO
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. NG
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Eric W.M. CHEUNG
Senior Manager — Information Technology

Vincent K.M. KWOK
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

William B. MONTALBO
Plant Manager/Brewmaster of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 55 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, VBA, BBA, aged 53, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 30-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration,
from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr Richard W.K. CHAN, vsc, aged 49, General Sales Manager, joined the

company in 2016. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the field of
sales in various industries.
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Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 52, Marketing Director, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 23 years of solid experience in marketing in various
industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 53, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 33 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, DiP, aged 58, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 28 years of service with the Company. He
has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, 54, aged 47, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994.
Mr. Co has more than 22 years of experience in business planning, business
research, corporate affairs and quality management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vBA, Dip, aged 54, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained 30 years of
experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, MSc, BSc, aged 54, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has gained
30 years of solid experience in the operations and management of the
Information Technology functions.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 48, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more than 25 years of
solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. William B. MONTALBO, Bsche, aged 53, Plant Manager/Brewmaster of
San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited. Mr. Montalbo joined San
Miguel Brewery Inc. in 1988. He has extensive working experience in both
Domestic and International Operations. Mr. Montalbo graduated from De La
Salle University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering.
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Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+-_A=1+—HLLFE KK
per share data and number of personnel AR EIE K B T ABIMILABEE T et &
Ten Year Review + ol EE
2016 2015 2014
ZE-RE —E—hF —ZT—mF
Revenue WA 541,427 569,502 728,640
Profit/(loss) from operations (3) KERF (BB 3 11,505 (11,555) 41,635
Profit/(loss) for the year before RerEARYT Z
restructuring costs (3) &F|/ (E518) 3) 6,705 (16,909) 36,994
Restructuring costs (1) FHARZ (1) — — —
Profit/(loss) for the year (3) FEAF, (FE) Q) 6,705 (16,909) 36,994
Taxes paid, including beer tax IR S BT 10,494 15,984 20,670
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEBERERKRE — = 7,472
Cash dividends per share (cents) RIS (L) — — 2
Non-current tangible assets and projects FERBEREERERFTIEE
under development 584,806 597,381 621,309
Net worth (2) A () 558,084 544,986 571,949
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 116,014 118,421 116,888
Number of personnel (4) BT AZ 4) 539 549 566
(1 Restructuring costs in 2007 represented restructuring activities of the Company.
) Net worth for the 2007 to 2008 have been restated for a change in accounting policy for intangible assets.
(3) Profit from operations, profit before restructuring costs and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee
benefits.
@) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
[ ]
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BET-A=+T—HILFE  BER
Win 8iE % 8 T ABIMGARE TITat&E

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except
per share data and number of personnel

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—F-=F —E—=F —ZT——%F —E—TF —ETNF ZETNF ZETF
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(B &E5) (B&E%)) (B&E%)
687,093 686,362 683,879 589,322 696,824 753,375 754,833
28,674 243,428 (48,365) (770,605) (331,879) (301,033) 4,962
25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) 50,397
= — = — — — (310,220)
25,824 226,976 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) (259,823)
19,614 26,683 36,009 42,020 68,877 102,485 140,831
3,736 = — = = = -
'I - J— - - - P
635,893 654,678 389,671 398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910
543,678 511,836 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565
106,631 104,724 101,023 96,719 99,341 91,656 105,510
587 606 635 732 766 766 838
(1) ZETLFERRAITEARRZEREE -
@) THFETT N\ FZFECHRENEEZ SHBORE S -
@) KLERF Rt BEERAZ 2B RS ——F2RANEHEER/H 2 S BURBE EY
@) BTAZERNFERE —EIEAZERETIHE -
I
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #R&

SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—RFTA=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
2016 2015
—~E —hF
Note $'000 $'000
BaE Ft Tt
Revenue WA 3 541,427 569,502
Cost of sales SHE A (303,111) (331,846)
Gross profit EZ ] 238,316 237,656
Other net income Hib U 28558 4 42,443 39,837
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HERA (178,366) (197,195)
Administrative expenses TR ST (82,849) (83,784)
Other operating expenses Hth &R &R (8,039) (8,069)
Profit/(loss) from operations RERR, (B8) 11,505 (11,555)
Finance costs MBER 5(a) (5,578) (4,498)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBAIZER (FE) 5 5,927 (16,053)
Income tax credit/(charge) Rt A (ZH) 6 778 (856)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF, (FE) 6,705 (16,909)
Attributable to: FE{RINE :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERFEA 8,654 (16,074)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE RS (1,949) (835)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERAN (FiE) 6,705 (16,909)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN (FHE)
Basic (cents) FA () 10(a) 2 (4)
Diluted (cents) e (L) 10(b) N/A FiE A N/A NiE R
The notes on pages 70 to 127 form part of these financial statements. TIREI0E 127 B 2 SN AR EHRE 2 —2F
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE-_T—"F+tZA=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (CABHEETE)
2016 2015
—E-RF —F-RF
Note $'000 $'000
iz F T
Profit/(loss) for the year _ EEBRR BR) 6705 (16,909)
Other comprehensive income FEHMG2ERE (RHE#E)
for the year (after tax) 9
Items that may be reclassified subsequently B e EF A B AEE
to profit or l0ss
Exchange differences on translation of: PEH =58
— financial statements of subsidiaries — MEEINFB A BB R
outside Hong Kong FrEAZEH = 23,329 22,077
— monetary items that form part of the net — BB AR EERHE A A
investment in subsidiaries outside ZIHEMEEIEE FTEA
Hong Kong ZEHERR (24,490) (22,499)
(1,161) (422)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 0SS # T & FEZHH A 1Bz 6918 B
Actuarial gains and losses of defined TERER ARG S 2 i E AT R EE
benefit retirement plan 7,554 (5,896)
6,393 (6,318)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£EZHEUKEAEE 13,098 (23,227)
Attributable to: BEfRaT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERFAA 13,171 (24,134)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (73) 907
Total comprehensive income for the year S£E2mEIkZE%E 13,098 (23,227)
The notes on pages 70 to 127 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE127 B2 SEWF AR KK 2 —6
,T/'\ °
[
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %r& Bt #& AR 3=

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2016
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABREEE)

2016 2015
—E-REF —F—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE Fi FIT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WS RERE 11(a) 372,125 416,822
Investment properties wEME 1(a) 134,923 98,457
Interests in leasehold land held for EREHETBRMES
own use under operating leases MFEE ik 11(a) 77,758 82,102
584,806 597,381
Intangible assets mREE 12 5,139 5,163
589,945 602,544
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 14 49,247 52,431
Trade and other receivables FEURE 5 K E M ARIE 15 57,843 68,772
Amounts due from holding companies il ezl oNE])
and fellow subsidiaries KRR B A RERIE 16 15,167 7,157
Amounts due from related companies FEU BA:E A RIBR IR 16 1,532 262
Bank deposits RITFER 17 46,602 50,882
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBREER 17 111,117 97,718
281,508 277,222
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables FER B 5 R EAARIR 18 (88,578) (104,460)
Loan from an intermediate holding company FMERARIZER 19 (25,448) =
Amounts due to holding companies FERHZEAR A B
and fellow subsidiaries PGS NG E S 16 (6,990) (5,375)
Amounts due to related companies FERAE A RIERIA 16 (6,130) (5,016)
(127,146) (114,851)
Net current assets TENE EFE 154,362 162,371
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2016

e BRI R

R=FB—ARF+_A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RHF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tt Tt
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABARS 744,307 764,915
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from an intermediate holding company AR A Al 2 B 19 (165,410) (190,747)
Retirement benefit liabilities RRRANEE 20(a) (17,844) (26,939)
Deferred tax liabilities BEIBEAE 21(a) (2,969) (2,243)
(186,223) (219,929)
NET ASSETS EERE 558,084 544,986
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR #E
Share capital R A 22(c) 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H{th 332,687 319,516
Total equity attributable to equity AAREREE AEGER
shareholders of the Company 585,211 572,040
Non-controlling interests FEER S (27,127) (27,054)
TOTAL EQUITY A 558,084 544 986

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 February 2017.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Director

BRI Ramon G. Torralba

EF

The notes on pages 70 to 127 form part of these financial statements.

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY a8 EZ & B &R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_T—"F+tZA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KATREREARERG
Exchange Non-
Share Capital  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
EXRE
i B 1 Wi ftE Rt EREZ ERls
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(i T 7 7 T 7 T 7
Balance at 1 January 2015 R=B-1&
e TA-REB 2pan | egn o 1S SAN0_ @l ol
Changes in equity for 2015 “E-REREEE:
Loss for the year FEER - - - (16,074) (16,074) (839) (16,909)
Other comprehensive income HEp2Eka 9 = = (2,164) (5,89) (8,060) 1,742 (6318)
Total comprehensive income FEEZANEETE
oA S o Qley @i A I oo sa
Dividends approved in respectof - —BIBEE I
_Mepreviousyear e 20 . T . . B Gy o BB
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=B-T1f
and 1 January 2016 +ZA=1+-H
k=B-5~E
—A— At 252,524 112,970 78,907 127,639 572,040 (27,054) 544,986
Changes in equity for 2016 “E-REREEE .
Profit/(loss) for the year FRRF/ (BB) - - - 8,654 8,654 (1,949) 6,705
Other comprehensive income HthzElE 9 - — (3,037) 7,554 4,517 1,876 6,393
Total comprehensive income FEZENEET
for the year - - (3,037) 16,208 13,171 (73) 13,098
Balance at 31 December 2016 ~ R=E—iF
TZA=t-HE&H 252,524 112,970 75,870 143,847 585,211 (27,127) 558,084
The notes on pages 70 to 127 form part of these financial statements. HIRETOE127 B v S EM T AR EHRE 2 —26
3o
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BBENREHER AT ZB—REER
AN =
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &8l ERER
for the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"EF+_A=T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHEETE)
201 6 2015
—RE —hF
Note $ 000 $ 000
Bt T T
Operating activities REXEK
Cash generated from operations LRI IS A 17(b) 27,219 22,927
Net cash generated from REERZEEMN
operating activites ] E %E _______________________________________________ 2_ 721 _9 ____________ _2_2;?@?_ N
Investing activities REFK
Payment for the purchase of non-current assets K& FEmRENE & AT X (13,813) (5,017)
Proceeds from disposal of hon-current assets HEIERFHE Ejﬁ@ﬁk 2,036 2,961
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits BITERURD () 4,280 (23,828)
Interest received 2 FI S 829 930
Net cash used in investing activities ~  #R&AXFoRepmzE 6.668) | el |
Financing activities A& SEE
Interest paid ERFE (5,454) (4,373)
Dividends paid BfRE — (3,736)
Net cash used in financing activities ~~ ®EZEBzRempmE® 0000000 (5.454) | (8109
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BHEREREELER
and cash equivalents ZFREEN (BD) 15,097 (10,136)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZHE&
at 1 January RERREERER 17(a) 97,718 108,574
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EXg# & (1,698) (720)
cash and cash equivalents R+t=—B=+—Bz#8%
at 31 December EERRELBEBEETF 17(a) 111,117 97,718

The notes on pages 70 to 127 form part of these financial statements.

FIRE7OEN27 B 2 REMERA B IRK 2 — 5

(N
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ErEg
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRER BB EE 2 BB EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which B ([BEPEMELER]]) MR- [FE
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial BRI | — B ER S ASE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Mz A ERNERE S ERELER - &
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BERTER ([HAGFTER]) kRE - 5%
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong NRe=FRBIRES CARVMED)Y Z1RE 3%
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EPBRENMETEBHEZFER AR
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure FHEMARA ([ EWHRE]) 2@BEER
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock F o AEERBAZEIESHERBENT -
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first Ehestih ecEBneTar&BEI 2
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period AP BERELER  WHAEE 2 N5
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting A B X R AT IR R R AN o BRFER L
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the LM ANANER Y I LRSI R E R
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior S EE 2 st R 2 E 0 R AR
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements. BHFRARM - BEEREHRHEE 0 -

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mEBBBEHmK AR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December BE_E—Et+t-_A=1t—RHIEEZ%
2016 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as EUBRERBEARAMENB AR (5715
the “Group”). RIAER]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BAFSERR T AR SE B AN B R L E
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB BRRELEQNBBREE R
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EEEFLEYEIRERAREE  8F -
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, WA BB YR RE B HE - HE B
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are RIRTE o (et R EBRRDIBEAELR K
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEAMEEEBIER TEAEMEMEZEM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form Bl EERK AU EEMIRIT TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and ANEERBEREEELARNER - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results PR4EROIREA BN LS hET -
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing Hat AR B R EHERT - HYFHhaTE
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 1TIBETRE - BSET R 2 HIR - B8] 2
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in BT IR N MER » BIEET e 2RE
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both AR R EAR - RIME(ERT B R 2R BRFEI SR ©
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSS that FLER PR B S B RS R S YE RIS BT VE A9 B
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of NRIERE T —FE 2 BRI EBHRENH
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. B[R 2 AET AR R AB IR EE2 o

I
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EEENEEBRARAT —B-ARFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEEE®

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EHBXNEH
The HKICPA has issued a number of the following amendments to HKFRSs EB et e BmIA NRIEE] 2 BAR
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of FEAMEMER - BT E AR AEE 2 RS
these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group: HEAR AR o B THMSETEAEERS

@
— Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: — BB ERNE 19 (BR]) [HEET
Disclose initiative )
— Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2012-2014 Cycle — BB EREER —FT——F2 —F
—PIF R E 2 G

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the RNZE B ABEANSEEEARAR KB
Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods have FENETERA BN ER L -
been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not REBEN KRB E R AN EE MR E
yet effective for the current accounting period. REFTAEA SRR o

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MBATIRIFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance
with notes 1(l) or 1(m) depending on the nature of the liability.

MEARRARBTES 2 EE - EAKE
EBSRER I XBUMARLZAE
2 B35 N8 IR I A R B [ R B AV AR
71 RIREEZRGIZER - EPEAREEZ
BEZEENE  EZE (AREMEMLT
PR A E) BERER -

R R 2 & R Fr A SR e 5f AR
EMBHREAN  BEEGEKIESIE - AE
BARR Mz &R RHRBARE - A
RZZFEL 2 EFRARZERERN - IR HE
A MBMREEEUES - WERESER
AEBARR Mz R B MELE 2 RERE
18 TIARERAMBER A -

R TR AR BEN AR
MM B AR MARBEREZESRH
FZBAEAIM N - B S EERE L8 %
SHDELNAMBRBEERNEAERS
HRBBEEEAG  EEAEEUAA(EE
kA RIE R A B A PR EEFEMNAIGL
IR IF IR S

ISR A M B AR AR RS
SR - (BEATREREERRER DR o IF
ERAERIE A REFENBRNREBRES
BUWERADERIFERE R LA EBEN AR
RABEREDETZ A2 - AIFHEREERE
ABHHERAREME OB EBREM T
1N 1mM (BRENEEME) N M5
HAREINBHHEE -

71



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

72

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d MBRRRFERRES (@)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss REBNHEB A TR 2 BB k3| i

of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments HELNZ G  LREZANIBZHAER  RE

are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests HREZRTE T 23R8 N JEPE IR R a5 E A =R LA
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but R AR EREE) - B TERER

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a INRAREBELENBA R ZIEHIHE - 2B

disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or S REEZNB AR 2SSk - A

loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former RHWERBE - ERAEEFRE Z AT E

subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and DA A RERIRRRIEGER R EER -

this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZEETMEEVRERZ ARE  HAER

asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment Bt N ml s R RIEHIE B 2 IR IR B K

in an associate or joint venture. (i) o

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARTZBBARRTZA - BB R R A

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i). BRANRREREE (RFEE10) ZIR -

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% HBERZME

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost MR IEARANRERMEEE (RN

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)), with 10)) FIBRSON - AT EOMDEE - HES M REBIEK

the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any B RETE RREBESERE (RHE10) :

impairment losses (see note 1())).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings — DEAMEHRETN LM EME (R
thereon (see note 1(Q); MIEE1(Q)

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land — ENHERKEHE T i FRBEH
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)); and W (R &

— other items of plant and equipment. — HAbhes Rk

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of B EYSE  MERRFEBE ZRE

property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between DHEEERIEFEUREHIELE RmME L

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are EHE o WhEhEEsk B E B EBS PR -

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant WE TG E - HE N REK AR E G R

and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the #%EBE (E) EETMEEHAI B FHE

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: MABRETE MM -

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is — DEAREME TR LA ARERA
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. SR E -

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the — FHELTH EMWERREREE
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful BNEMFAFERFSR (TReR+
lives, being no more than 50 years. F) MEPREHETE -

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 410 50 years — Hegs - R NEERTF

ERINSE

— Motor vehicles 410 7 years — =R NEE+F

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until FREIEREETHKRAIRAERI TS

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use. IRITE -

[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1. EEEBER (@

(e)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) W% HBRRHE (H)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different BIEYE  MELRBEZEINDETEN
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis T{ERER - WIBB &SN ZKABIRSE
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful AW OB - MEBHBIE@RINE - A&EE
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. BEBRNEEZAERAFRRERKREE

(FH) -

()  Investment properties ) BEYWHE
Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held BEMEABRIRESWAR S AERIEE
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for miERSARERE#EZ (AKEE1E) IHEH
capital appreciation. THIRBEE ©
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B Y IR AR 25T E K BEE RSB
and impairment losses (see note 1()). Depreciation is calculated to write (RMEEG) o ITEE T E Y K AR EH
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, H%EBE (E)  ExRERHEEEREGET
if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired FRAFE (THBR TF) ME BRI
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 BREFTE MM -
years.
Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual BEYENAPREHRERSER (10F)
values, if any, are reviewed annually. EIRFIER R -
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described 1% & W) Z R & U AR 35 T 5 1) i) Pt 75
in note 1(r)(i. NETE o

(8) Leased assets (g) WHEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or MAEEEEZHEAERTHREANEBS
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys f—Fs— X ZEMTAE BT EER
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in ZIHEEZERN > BIZLTH (A—F2X 55
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is — RN GHK) ATHESBIERE - %E
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is ETRBLZHE 2 AR EMEL - MERLT
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease. BRBEHERE 2 EEFR -

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFEAEEZEENSHE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance
lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the
fair value cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

HRAKBUAERANEE  WERHEE
A B A BB AR D L M 3 R R = K
S8 BFHEEESHGRAREHER
B o WARKHEEEZNERBRINNEEE
ZHEEBE - TV REKERE  ATEIN

— [NAREMEEENEEHEMES

WAOBEREME - MREDBRER
B ZHESUREHEEAK:
&

— REKEHESERAMBENLIM -

HERABEEHEEMMAE T aERARN
Bt EHEENAAEEDFH
E 2ERREREEERAARK
BRIEA BAE E MR ARIBE LT AR
B RIfERIER - Bt E - THEMF
IR R AR E ERET LB - ok
WERT AR AR T B -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MHEEE®
(i)  Operating lease charges iy KEHE
— Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating — MAEBIRBEKLEHEEFREE R
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or BN 2 FIB RN BRF AERE
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by EHRENFTRE 25t M - T
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit S EMEER I IEAFTTERNERE
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments FHENREN - EERPRE
made. R o
— The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is — AR TR E 158 T AU B A 2R 2 4R
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease HAEEBNEE - RERIEY
term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance with the TR BRI 13) = TR R BERR ©
accounting policy set out in note 1(i).
(h) Intangible assets (hy #B|EEE
Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and PR 2 & P ERE R LARK AR A R (B 518 51 BR
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1()). (RMFE0) °
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are REBWEEWESY RAEAFEAFTH
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note WEHE AT LEFAERE RS (R
). FE) ©
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite B EEZAFERFHE T ECNERETTE
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances BRAEEBEREREE L IFZEE 2 THE
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. FEEAFHZTEER -
(i)  Impairment of assets () EERE
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) EEWRIERRE
Receivables that are stated at amortised cost or at cost are reviewed at BB HEKAY R BRRTER S EERET
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective Bl UHEESE A RERFEERL LR
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes B RENTREREREATASEBEN
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or —IE S HBR BN A BREE
more of the following loss events:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — BBAERNNI ISR EE
— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest — EREH - flunye/x @ EER A
or principal payments; AR FIH
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or — B ANETRESHMTREERES
other financial reorganisation; and AR &
— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal — TERM - T8 KESEEEBEYN
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor. BAREFHEFAETHZE -
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) EERE @@

(i) Impairment of receivables (Continued) (i) EWFRERNREE (8)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— An impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets) for receivables carried at amortised
cost or discounted at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets for receivables stated at cost, where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment 10ss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables included within trade and other receivables, the recovery of
which is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or 10ss.

WA B EERTELRRE  EFARERS
BT IIEE M ER -

— REBBREZEERIELGE AR
Reng8RECERTE  BiRER
TREEZRENERMNE (AEL
BEEVGERRFTENERNX)E
TTRRER (MR EEBEAN) - FTE
BBERANEZ CREERHESR
BURRIEE (IR BEIARNE
) MR AR BLHERE - DR
RS - MEHERE S REEDN
RRBRERETIMRIELFEERBRIE
BRUNEENBEEREER

R EEES BN TR IR - M
BRERD A 2B SRR E R RR
BEZEMHARE - QIRERBERE
@mEO - WO NSEREE ZREE
R W 70 B 1 4 2 I SRR R LR (BB
BRNREEE ISR -

HEEBREREAREEEME RN E
WE 5 B B Bl SR FE U 5 B SR P RE R
BEEER - B EHE S RE M OB SE
AIfERIER » IR T » RERAFERE
BRBRERLE - EAREERREKEY
T RIRG SERRENSEE ERERK
B HIRRF M - M EAIP A BB AR
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ERERDHRNSE  RISEBYERP
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEREE®
(i)  Impairment of assets (Continued) (iy EERE @
(ii) Impairment of other assets (i) HEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of REREEE AR RINEER - LA
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may ATHNEEREGD HIBENZAIEHERZ
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists WEESEE M ELEIRD
or may have decreased:
— Property, plant and equipment; — YZE - HEER R
— Investment properties; — WEME
— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — ERESHETEAMBANHEE Ty
leases; W
— Intangible assets; and — mIVEE Rk
— Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of — RAR BB AR R R BB B A )4
financial position. o
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. MEFEEMEBRTR - BlgHstEEN
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the el 458 o N B BT A E BTN
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any BILEEMS @ AEBS@TFEGsTERUE
indication of impairment. R MEEESAEMAENR -
— Calculation of recoverable amount — FTEAKRE S5
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value BEZAKO¢ESEEEFERE
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, RAEEMETZESHE - RAHHER
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present BER @@ B%RBATAIE =Gt
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market MAKRBSRERERE - %8R
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to KE R R THIS S I TRl G 2 BB
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely HEENZEE BERR - WEE
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount W ARBEEARBUB Y R E b & & T HREN
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash Be&Re MBI HRIGRESREY
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). BNMERIEE (BVBREVR © 8 41) 3k
ETErE £ -
— Recognition of impairment losses — TR E R B
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying BEEE (NEMBNIRSELRS
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it i) MEEEEBAE W R < - A
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses SHEWBEFRERREEE - ptBEEE
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to SEBRAERNRERSE AR E
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group I (SkazHElR) EEMNRMERL
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an PloE - MEEREETERL 2R
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs REREH AR BERBESEKASRSE
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use. FREE (B§ET) °
— Reversals of impairment losses — B eUR E 18
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable fis FA ARE BT AJ U Bl & B8 2 (T HH 3R AT
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable B B EREEE -
amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying e 2 R EBEERNMEATFEL
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss AERREBEMEF] 2 EEZRE
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses B - O 2 BERETRERER 2
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are FEFFAEBGEP -
recognised.
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @

(i) Inventories h ==
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. GEERAS A SIFEME 2 REEG

&

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises A AINBE R AL E - WEIEMAR
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in B « IR R 8717 & 2 BUR I i Zh B
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. ARSLPTEE 4 2 B AR o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of AR FEAREERS 2T EER AT
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs AR AR M AR E AN o
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is REEFER  ZEFE2ERESRRE
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is U HAREIPER X - FEMURE ] 2IR%
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable B BEERMEFE BB MRS E R
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the RA%5IVER S o (Rl m] B 3R R (E 18 hn M B B B Y
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any A7 B R E & R EE ] 25 A B R P R
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of TH e
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(k)  Receivables (k) FEWRE
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at FERFIERE A BERER - HERNE
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for BRF AL E A AR B R IZERARES
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1()), except where the receivables BAME (RMFE10) - HwWE B R RIE
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed AETFHEEATBETECMAETEERENHR
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such BEF - sBEIREZENKE - B{ERI ©
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of EZEERT » EWERIERR AR REED
doubtful debts. BERESIER -

()  Interest-bearing borrowings () MEER
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less W EBREVIZR AR BERELR S ERE
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest- R o REERE - M EEFIREHEKAIE
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference B ERE R AN Z RSB FKRERE U
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being BERAEEEBRERER o
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Payables (m) FENFE
Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at FERZTESEVIRALBERER - HEE
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in SHRKANHIME - MEWRRIREZE T K » AliRA A
which case they are stated at cost. HIME ©

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) HERZERBRLHER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

RekFRREBERERTESF R &R
1T R EA I TSR 2 8 i SR A R d 1
BZIRE - MZBHRERER AT A E A
ReeRABEAEERR ITRABAR=
BARNRMZILERR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(0) Employee benefits (o) 1EEREF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEEREMN R EREER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRINFTEIZEHFREF S FRIEL - BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are R~ EREFEWRGE 2 BRI AEEFTE
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by Y IEERTIEINAEB EEIZHEBDR
employees. B2 FEERR o

(ii)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERNREEIZEE
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement AEFBGETHEEFNEARS2NFAERIE
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount 8 TR MB & B PR O RIS (5T H
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service BEER) R SRS B F AR EH
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine WREWIREMASIEEN AT EE - 6
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The STERAERNBEMUTE B ERAE
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 17 BfEHEREAERET KA - BHER
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, BERRMEA ATE S 8 & R R A
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits HRRIBAEANLENRIRE -
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined EREN B ENEEFENRBEKATNFE
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by TH BB FREEERRER - WikHER
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” BEATHEERA] [HE D HEAY]
or "administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the [TTHEY ] B—%5 - BEREKANZSIHE
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting AEREMREFEANEREENEENE
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan BIZHNZETE - BT2IM AN HIREFH
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed EEFTMERE BEEBBATREREEEAN
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on FE)I D kLRSS RIEES - @ TERT
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier 2D ok MR B AR RS S SRR R SR AR AR AN ok
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related FHRENE (WREEAE)  NEZRNER
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest ABEH - BIRFI B HeE I A FEE 2B ER
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount LY ETREN AEMEANTE R E
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning AR EREEMNEaEEEFEMET  FTH
of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The MITREERBEEHEASEMAEAE
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality HIR A NEE D EEHFNRE ARG
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the RETF o
Group’s obligations.

(iliy  Termination benefits (i) ARILEFEERN
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can KRILEBENAS ANEBREE LEN IR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises HNETHERAEAMABIELFRIEHE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. B (AR E BAE) o

(p) Income tax (p) FRSH
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred REEZZERBERNAHBEREEREE
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax ENBEZEE « NEAKRIBENELEREBEE
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent RBEZEB$HEERZPER  EEFTER
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or HEmemlasEERERTERNIER -
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised Bl 5> RIFE Efth 2 E U 2 kb 2 R R ©
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the NERFI A TR IE AR EE R R A - SR
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the HEHEBMETERAMEIE 2R E 2 A
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous FENTIE YheFEE 2 ENHEBEELE
years. (OEEEE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEE @)
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p)  FrE® ()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

BEXERAEERBBENIDHREEERAE
BERFBIMEAZ EmENREREMESL
ZRAFR R ERT 2 E R =R o RIEHIAE
EE TR A R KRB 2 RIS R 1R S R R 2
B R FTESE

BETERZASMER  MBERLEHEARAR
FMORFETIAE E (AR EAR A se A EIH AR
KRIERTUEFE BR) 198 T IAMER - 8¢
A FER A R E R AL ZIREHIA
BEZARERDUEHN - BEEEDRARE
AMEREEMELE 2 AIMREREZR
MR 5 22 BRZR A [R] — B 95 B K A [P P AR A
EREH TRV EHEQAHRERE
B RATE O AR RIAREMEL 2
MRS < [F—HEARED - REEREE
RRE R ZEA A RERARBBHIAER
KBS PrEL 2 REHIAEER XA AR
R - AR E AR — B AR R R
AN BERAR  WRMAA N ARARER
e 2 XEHE (—RAZER) niEm - Alg
FUAEEA

MARERAEER BB DBHSMER
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PR - Skt AN Z R 5 BIZAA R BE R AR 2R
BEERR -

BEEMRIA ERERVREER BB ZRE
BEZEMERI NN - KAREEAM
FIERAR LRI E 2R EFH  BEHAE
ERBELAREARE -

BIERBEEZ ERENNEEEBETE
B - W5 3 RT B B 5 2 B BR A5 VI A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 EEEsBEE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FrE® (@)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, R RBEEMGHARMEZEHER HHT
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax T~ WEATEE - REAFRLEMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERN B ANEBR B EAFEITHEEARE
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally TS EEREAEHMEHEaE  YAKE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AT S AEERIB R T » A A A B 52
and the following additional conditions are met: HFIRE TSI ALE
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — AEFSHEEMNEE « KXAFIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEFEIRFREELE - A
and settle the liability simultaneously; or R EEMEEZEaE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — ELEFEHEEMEE  EHEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENERR—FSEBRATES
— B METIS T A A -
— the same taxable entity; or — [A— PRI < 3K
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TEMERTIEE - ELE
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or BT EIETEHE KRBIRLEA
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to "HAaEREBEIRTRM
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 150 & B AT LA Bl ) & 4R R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. REAR - IRFREEETRA
EIFTIS H& E B B4 HA BT
FWaE  KRRFEHRZE
EMBEZBE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities () EBERIREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IMRA DB AREB B B LR SRR
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation EESETER  AMEHeEREELE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of MR ERING - A AEH AT S/ fEH 5T
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable B AARISAERFEemZEE s EER
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, EREEFRER MR EBRHEELR
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to BTt T E X BRI IREET 51 24 o
settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MRS ELBE NI ERINT B A B &
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K skeE AN A EEEER T SEMNEET
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of FERZEBRERIABE - BERINK
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence K A] BE MEAR IR BIBR AN - SN RAEBAEIEA
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or BIEEFTRZFTAREEE LS AT
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the REFE - TeHELRNBEE  BERI
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. ST HY AT RE AR R BRI
()  Revenue recognition (n WARER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or U AR BA B WCER Bt AT R BN B9 A o (BEET
receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow B o MESHLBENEMERAEERALRSE
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured C T A AR AN (AiE R ) RESAVE I AT 52
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: FER BRRABZRUAT AN ERERA
R
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HEWAEARWEEMS DR E R EEE
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods BRSSPI IRE c EE OABEMS Y
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in RERCEEN  BEEEIERLEER
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks @& T AN « HEWATBIEIGER LS
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and min o WEINBRFTAE ST &R[E -
consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®

()  Revenue recognition (Continued) (n WARR (&)

(i)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEUWA TR E R TR AE -
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) RLEHFEMERZHESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit RIEGELHEEMEI 2B A - JThAEEE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. RIBHFTRE 2 5T BIRRER - BREHEEH
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part EhFa e T E A PT N A R EE S H B 0 Ea Ay — 3
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. DIEEmPHER

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) IMEEHH]

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) MEEEEREREE
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s AREFLEWEB AR 2 BREMBIEZIE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWBARKSEMTE s EELER
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The B2EWE ([T 8 ]) 18 - REeBmEk
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, LAETE5 - METAKRAR IR W
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. j={-- 30

(ii) Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i) FRUINEHEIT 2R 5 - AR 5B 2N

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

[ERME o LAISNEEE 2 B EERALE -
AIABE R ZINEERIGE - EHIBm A
Az o

PASNEE IR e KA GHE R SEE B E R AE
35 B EINETE S EITINE -

BB LAINEIEH A TR R 5 A RE R4
ERERGE SEE - BIBHRRROIAR R
HEAMEXRE B - IEENERZE
RRE R (@R AR ) ARERR o

BHERBIINERE - B XA ME
RNEMKEREH R ES ZRE WS
HO| B EE o

ERHBELMINEELER (BAIBRE

BLASMRE R —aR ) EARR 2 IR &
DS E T ) JRI 1B s B ABCR AR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(u) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(1 has control or joint control over the Group;
) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(1 The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in ().

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(8) The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

—
82

1
(t)

(u)

FESHBE (2
BERA

HUHE  EEREESERERE (BIMAR
A—BEERRETAIERERAENHEZE
E) MEEEBAHZEERAIRIEZETEE
Z MR o H R B RIS E & B IR
FIVERIS ©

BEAL

0] ERAL - HEERRBOKEHR
REAEEBEAL - WEZERA
=+

Q) SRR AR
2 HAEEEEATEN %K

@) RASEFAEEFREE
BEBEABKBZ— -

(ii) — BB BRI & A T I EM - BIE
RBRENEEREAL

M ZEBNAEEZR—£E
MKB (EEREEREAR
A HEARRRRKEA
AIRREM)

@) —HEEE S —HREMES
RAHABRE (—EERE
RRE—KBERENHZ QR
ZEELE Mir—EER
RA—SKEZKE) -

@) MERBRAE=STHEA

% -
@) —EEEEE=—EEENA
BhE Mrx—REERRS

—AEEMEE AT -

6  HEBDEREETAREN
MAEEE@EALTNER
e BRER IR R A& o

6 RERBIEXOMEOAL
2l e R -

@) EXXOM AR R ERIA T4
ZEBBEEAVENRAZ
B (IREEBERR) £8
BEEABKBZ—

@) mAEENAEEQRR

HIBEERERKZER
FEMBEEZEAKRER
e

BERALTHERRBX B EZRBX B HE
HERE R SRR ERIRT ENRBKE -



EEENEEBRARAT —B-ARFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued 1  EEEBER @

(v) Segment reporting (v) DEEREHR
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LEDBRAMBHREANE RS D HIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information SHEETHRERFAERSESITHREEREAS
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RERDE M EANEENES IR EERN
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, D58 2 IR B MR IBA BT B B
the Group's various geographical locations. B 2R
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial R BEERME  BRIEDBEBELUNEE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BERTEERERBMEE - AETFME -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products BFREASER - AESBE MR RS
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of B EREERENEE AL - TR
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide HEARE YIS EITEE o [HRIFEEK
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating B SEL  INRGA it KEEDIEXE - 8
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they AEITAE °
share a majority of these criteria.

2  Accounting judgements and estimates 2 gitHErRAE
Note 20 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors BRI 208EEEEKEIAGBEZHBSE
relating to the retirement benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation SN - LU= R TN R E A A T R A
uncertainty are as follows: &t :

(@) Impairment of non-current assets (@ FRBEEZRE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets HAEBRBERZSEEERfELKRE - BE
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” AR A [ORE]  WiliBE S5 4L|
and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS F365% [ HEME] HAREEE - RIER
36 Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BEETERIE 36, ZEEERNEHXER
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that B AR A8k 7 BREE ] gE & A Y O] B
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such ENZEEITRERIS - REIRB@RIENS - R
a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable EEAERZETRE S - AlkE$ 58 AT
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs HEBEFRAEBEMENRSE - REEF
of disposal and value in use. In determining the fair value less costs of HEER  EEEeXZHELENER
disposal, management refer to the observable market prices for similar THIHERE - NEBERE R AELR KT
assets. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by AIREEENESERE - Al - BRMISE
the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant BOlRe B RIA B - WAl BT B EE
judgement relating to the volume of future sales, future selling prices and WEREEEHERAE - FRBHEEMNME
the expected amount of future operating costs. The Group uses all readily MEREEFFE D RIRMEE 1T R 12 #EE -
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount. However, actual sales volume,
selling prices, operating costs and market prices may be different from
assumptions which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts
of non-current assets are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of non-current assets (b) FRBEEZIFENEHE

Property, plant and equipment, investment properties and leasehold
land (see note 11) are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation or amortisation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation or
amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

WE - MR kERE REMEREE S E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
2  Accounting judgements and estimates (Contnued) 2  EEHEERFEF (&)
(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts (c) ZRERRBEFSE
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated losses AEEREBABREEELATAMRME
resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments. The BB ER IR R ERABEES - A%
Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of the trade BEiR BB A 15PN E Z R G
receivable balance as disclosed in note 15, debtors’ credit-worthiness and 2R - B ANEEBEMRSRE AR
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of debtors were to IR MEIELEET o WEBANTBHAR
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated. B BEEMEREAESAERTET
(d) Useful lives of intangible assets (d EBEREEZUEAFH
Intangible assets (see note 12) are not amortised as their useful lives ERAE (RME12) el 52
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an ARBEEE 2 IERAEHRER/TEE
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether HANUFRE  #8EEENERFHSRN
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life SRR T ELIBE RN s Y
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future HEAEREAFHRATRE o (NRIARKE
periods or recognise impairment losses for intangible assets if events and BIRE XA EAFEEART - NEET A2
circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. SYHELEEFEL B ERREERE -
(e) Deferred tax assets (e) EEMEBEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and BEERIEE E IS ARB A 2 IR EE R E R
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only MAERER - ARZETEEHIEEENE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits RIER AR K E R B R 5 0] BEEK SR E)
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, Ama B RARWIES - 1R EANERK
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of being FERT B 2 ee - BIEEBE AT (HE
able to generate future taxable profits. Management’'s assessment is H T HAEERD ¢ M AR IR FE SR B FI) 48 B UL (T
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised RERIBEEE - NERRAFEINELEHIEER
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred E o RERIEEEMNMEMEEAEFBRH
tax assets to be recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of F21HIEE -
deferred tax assets are disclosed in note 21.
3  Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSHBEEZE
(@) Revenue (@ WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution REBzFBEFARIERDIHBE  BE
of bottled, canned and draught beers. ARSI o
Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, WASEFTHEEMZBEZRENRTTM - B
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. | - EERRERE -
(b) Segment reporting (b) HWBERZHH
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent AEELMESIEEEK - SERNPEZHRE
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's NEAEEESETHEEABUNESEE
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource BEFERREER B AEBEE2HR 5
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the MEETE2HD I :
following two reportable segments:
— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture — BERAEBEEREETBEREIND
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of A BEs s BiEE MY ED 28
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas. JHEM ©
— The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture — FEAMESEZRETHEARK
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part ME (THE)) mBREINDEET
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas. RS 7 HER -
All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and AEBZIWAZBRERIER D IHBE - 7
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers. &R o
[
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSESEIEER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SEER2IR (H)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DEEE  BERERE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments
and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the segment and
other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is profit or 10ss
before taxation. Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments. Inter-
segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 1.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

AFFED RTINS EER - NEEZ
SETHREEASNRATEREREAT
RN AL ZFE  BERAE

DHEEBREMBEENEE  BREERR
HEE - DHABEREES D IMERD HE
PRIENENESRBENIRER - H#E
EREEMRAENAENLEMRBEE
HERIERE IR B ERRD o

AHEATZRBANXBBEMRAZ ALK
RIZN S EE - SRR BROEEAT
2N o AR Z EHIHHE R AR ISR
MBIEERE °

DEEM WM FAHHREAEE 2 G5 K
(R Al) — % e

HE-_ZT—R"FRZZ—AFT+ZA=1—
HiE BARETAEESESEITHREEA
BUPEER KBS HRE 2 EREHIIMN
T

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
E FERL sy
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RE —Z-1f “B-RE “E-1% ZE-RF ~E-1f
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
i it Fr T i i
Revenue from external customers — SMEEFMA 389,394 392,125 152,033 171,377 541,427 569,502
Inter-segment revenue DEBFEBA 308 303 - — 308 303
Reportable segment revenue ~ EFEHABRA 389,702 392,428 152,033 171,371 541,735 569,305
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AT 2HAHEE
from operations (B8) /Bl (6,610) (25,463) 12,537 9,410 5927 (16,053)
Interest income from bank deposits ~ $F{TEFFI M 622 693 235 194 857 887
Interest expense on loans B 8HR (5,454) (4373) - — (5,454) (4373)
Depreciation and amortisation FRTEREH
for the year (21,253) (23,693) (2,520) (2,799) (23,773) (26,492)
(Provision for)/reversal of EERRARKES R
Impairment losses recognisedin -~ EfEREZ (REEE
profit or loss in respect of BiE) /RESERE
trade and other receivables (320) (301) (11) 5 (331) (296)
Reportable segment assets BTRRIPEE 1,172,604 1,179,474 80,424 81,479 1,253,028 1260953
Additions to non-current segment  FRFERB D WEELM
assets during the year 11,289 2435 2,500 2558 13,789 4,993
Reportable segment liabilities ~ BF2HAIPEE 261,095 270,414 430,380 443310 691,975 713724
[ ]
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3  Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSSEEENR @
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDBEREW (HE)
(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZAF2{/IBKA - 18% - BERARB>
assets and liabilities HiR
2016 2015
—E-REF —FT—RF
$'000 $'000
T i
Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BT 2D IBRA 541,735 569,805
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7580 I A S (308) (303)
Consolidated revenue RAEWA 541,427 569,502
Profit/(loss) BF, (&E8)
Reportable segment profit/(loss) from operations BT EHRDIEERF, (BE) 5,927 (16,053)
Elimination of inter-segment profits Pan el bl € — —
Reportable segment profit/(loss) derived REIAZEZEATER
from Group’s external customers DEEF] (FE) &
and consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation RARTRIET, (E518) 5,927 (16,053)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets BATERHEBEE 1,253,028 1,260,953
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 80 2 [ FE WS BR TR AR B (381,575) (381,187)
Consolidated total assets REBEAE 871,453 879,766
Liabilities af&
Reportable segment liabilities ATEHRHPAE 691,975 713,724
Elimination of inter-segment payables 7 8B 2 [ e BRTE 4R EH (381,575) (381,187)
310,400 332,537
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEAE 2,969 2,243
Consolidated total liabilities rEBEAaE 313,369 334,780
[
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSESEIEER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDILER2ZIR (&)
(iii) Geographic information (iiiy HEEH
The following table sets out information about the geographic location of TEHEB () AEBEIINERZE KA (i) 4
(i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non- EEERBEE ([ETIFERBEE]) 2ith
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location BUBER BEZWEMNERRESELE
of customers is based on the country of establishment of each customer. PR EFTERRME c EEIERBEE
The geographic location of the specified non-current assets is based QB ERBBEECERUE (WEY
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and ¥ OKENEE REMENEE HHER)
equipment, investment properties and leasehold land, and the location of REZBREBEE  EEHE (HMBEFEE
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets. E)ME e
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
PREFWA BEFRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF —E—REF —ET—hF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT FT Tt Tt
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &8 (B HbER) 289,605 297,009 565,033 575,006
Mainland China R 93D, 56,267 86,797 24,912 27,538
Philippines JERE 188,076 178,574 — —
Others H R 7,479 7,122 — —
251,822 272,493 24,912 27,538
541,427 569,502 589,945 602,544
(c)  Major customers (c) FEEXF
In 2016, the revenue from the Group's largest customer which was RZZFE—RF REXEEFEBERPER
served both by the Hong Kong segment and the Mainland China 2 2 & KE P AU A & 190,291,000
segment amounted to $190,291,000 or 35% of the Group's total revenue TR AEBBRAZSB (T —HF:
(2015: $180,555,000 or 32%). The revenue from the Group's five largest 180,555,000 7084 32%) - REAEBH AKX
customers amounted to 61% (2015: 60%) of the Group's total revenue. BRI AMEREEBIBA % (ZFE—H
F 1 60%) °
Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set REZEREFZAMEERRE AN FE
out in note 23(a). 23(a) °
4 oOther netincome 4 HtuhSBH
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
$'000 $°'000
T Tt
Advertising and promotion subsidy (note 25(a)) EERminiEEmE (isE25@) 21,038 24,895
Rental income from investment properties REYENHESIA 18,028 10,759
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets HEERBEE 2 FEF] 1,253 2,351
Interest income from bank deposits HRITIFRZ F BN 857 837
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains [N F (E518) /&F (184) 499
Others HAih 1,451 446
42,443 39,837
[
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

5 Profit/(loss) before taxation 5 BRBRJRF (H5R)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREAEF (FE) SR (Gt
(crediting): A) NHIIER :

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
$'000 $° 000
Fi T
(a) Finance costs (a) Bi%EH
Interest expense on loan from R ERR AR
an intermediate holding company BEFF BT 5,454 4,373
Bank charges HRITE A 124 125
5,578 4,498
(b)  Staff costs (b) B THE
Retirement costs RIS AR
— Defined contribution retirement plans — ERMFRIKETE 5,976 5,444
— Defined benefit retirement plan — EREENR ARG E
(note 20(a)(v)) (Fft5E20(a)(v)) 5,633 5,613
11,609 11,057
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 116,014 118,421
127,623 129,478
(c) Other items (c) Hihm g
Amortisation b
— Land lease premium (note 11(a)) — HELHMFIA
(F3E11(@)) 2,536 2,588
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment — W - HEESNEEHE
(note 11(a)) (BF3E11@)) 16,505 20,548
— Investment properties (note 11(a)) — ®REWEE ([E110) 4,732 3,356
Cost of inventories (note 14) FERA (FizE14) 301,248 329,579
Operating lease charges: KEHEER -
minimum lease payments HEBRERR
— Land and buildings — tREE 1,540 1,544
— Other assets — Hi&EE 475 196
Rental receivable wEYEZES WA
from investment properties M EZEFH7,913,0007T
less direct outgoings of $7,913,000 (ZZ—A4F : 5559,0007T)
(2015: $5,559,000) (10,115) (5,200)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N £
— Provision for the year — NEFERE 3,717 3,436
— Under-provision in respect — FFERE
of the prior year N E 62 308
Impairment losses for trade and FEUE 5 K E A BR 3K
other receivables (note 15(b)) ZOREEE (FIFE 15(0) 331 296
[
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(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement 6 HFelka8®RZHER
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HmEWERZABHIE
represents:
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Deferred tax (note 21) EERE (MiaE21)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences wrpdEgE 7 HIR K B[O 778 (856)

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2015: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses
for taxation purposes.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the PRC
was 25% (2015: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been made
for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the entities sustained
losses for taxation purposes.

Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/charge and  (b)
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

AARREMEEMNBRABNEERRA
16.5% (ZZE—FEF : 16.5%) - NATI R EM
EBMB AT HRAR R HIEEIEBAKR
FEEETERR BN SERGREER e

AR MSHIEL R -

AR BIRCIZ RO P B A B ETE B R 43 25% (—
T—RF : 25%) ° RAPBEIRZEHE A RS
RERSHIBEE - MW BB AFERIAEL

B o

BRERAREFENAER (FtA) /X
HEERF (BR) 28R

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELRI AT, (E8) 5,927 (16,053)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation REBABRIEREER 2 EAR X
calculated at the rates applicable to FBRTATAF] (EB) TE
the tax jurisdictions concerned ZAhETHIE 2,085 (1,867)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIHOBRF S 2 BiE R & 1,262 1,722
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERRMAZ FHIEZE (103) (114)
Tax effect of contributions to retirement benefit plans R /K& FIET 2 3k > 1 18 o2 (231) @71)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary differences  FREERIEEFIIE > Fi B E B
not recognised for deferred tax purposes REREER 2 BIETE 9,904 19,564
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and JE AR S R R FE R B T 15 IS 18
temporary differences previously unrecognised REREZER 7 THIHZE (13,695) (17.978)
Actual tax (credit)/charge EEHE GEA) X H (778) 856
[ ]
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7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EFie

IREEA R EEBIE 383(1) 5 R (A F] (HFE
EENmER) RO F28 2 REMMEZ

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

90

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: FEMeT -
2016
—E-RE
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
¢ 2R
ok )4 BERA  BIRGTEIER Feks
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITER
Ramon G. Torralba HEE 2,875 — - 2,875
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang 242578 - - - -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR — — — —
May (Michellg) W. M. Chan BREX - - - —
Teruyuki Daino (resigned RERE (RZT—F
on 30 March 2016) =A=1HET) — - - —
Roberto N. Huang 2ER — - - -
Katsuhiko Matsumoto MARE (RZE—RF
(appointed on 29 April 2016) mA=+NBEZH) - - - -
Takashi Hayashi £ - - — -
Takeshi Wada MBE - - — —
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P Li ZEE - — — —
W.S. Ng R - - — -
Carmelo L. Santiago i i) - - — -
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — —
William C. M. Cheng HAIR - - - -
2,875 — — 2,875

The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.

WITERCHERES - MAFNTESR
BYIERTERCHEEMEMNE -
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7 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 7 EFEMe®
2015
—Z-hF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e 2k
ik )33 BETEA  RIRGTEIERT ks
$'00 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tt T
Executive director HITER
Ramon G. Torralba HERE = 2914 = = 2914
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang 24258 — — — — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba FER = = = = =
May (Michelle) W. M. Chan REX — — - - -
Teruyuki Daino REB= = = = = =
Roberto N. Huang #R = = = = =
Takashi Hayashi mEL — — — — —
Takeshi Wada Gillise = = = = =
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P.Li FEHE — — — — —
WS. Ng RUERT — — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago A= — — — — —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno — — — — —
William C. M. Cheng HAIR (W=Z—A1F
(appointed on 18 April 2015) mA+N\BEZE) — - - - -
Adrian M. K. Li ZRE (K214
(resigned on 17 April 2015) A+ REHE) — — — — -
— 2914 — — 2914

HITEFCHERES - AFNATESFR
BIYFFNTERCHEEMEME

The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
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8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 HMeEmsEZAR

RRHABABT —R(ZF—0F: —
2) REZ (KM ERME7RE) - A&
mE (Z2—0F 18 MekRZABZ

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2015: one) is a
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2015: four) individuals are as

92

follows: e T
2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
$'000 $°000
FT TIT
Salaries and other emoluments & ROERL 6,522 6,734
Retirement scheme contributions RIS 908 875
7,430 7,609
The emoluments of the four (2015: four) individuals with the highest e (ZE—RF : 0% esgazABZ
emoluments are within the following bands: et -
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
AEHE AEHE
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 2 2,500,000 7T 2 2
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9  oOther comprehensive income 9 Hti2Emka
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hit 2 s o iHEr 2
2016 2015
—E-RE —I-hF
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect  amount amount effect amount
BHAISE HEYE KRBLLE RUNeE TEYE RigeE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr r T T T
(note 21(a)) (note 21(a))
(KtaE21(a) (Fi5£210)
Exchange differences on BHER :
translation of:
—financial statements of — REFINHBAR
subsidiaries outside IBMRAEE
Hong Kong ZERERE 23,329 — 23,329 22,077 = 22,077
— monetary items that form — REEKEERHE AR
part of the net investment in ZHEMEREBEE
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ZERER (24,490) —  (24,490) (22,499) — (22,499)
(1,161) — (1,161) (422) — (422)
Actuarial gains and losses of EBRANR R E
defined benefit retirement plan ZIEE R R EE
(note 20(a)(v)) (FizE20@)\v)) 9,058 (1,504) 7,554 (6,996) 1,100 (5,89)
Other comprehensive income Hib2 AN 7,897 (1,504) 6,393 (7,418) 1,100 (6,318)
10 Earnings/(loss) per share 10 ®WERF(5HA)
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (@) BREXERF (FE)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the profit GRREAZET] (BR) TREAA AR
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $8,654,000 (2015: BAEEEFS 654,000 (ZE—HEFE : A
loss of $16,074,000) and on 373,570,560 (2015: 373,570,560) ordinary AR IEE AE(REE16,074,0007T) KA
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. FREANEEETT2 373,570,560 L@ (==
—HRF : 373,570,560 % L @A) 5T E -
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) #BEERERN (EHE)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is not presented as the Company did not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

Be 2y BREN, (BE) LRTFIIH - B
ATILRE A HE B B ARG -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBEHE
11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 PE - BREERE BREIYERAE
properties and leasehold land S1ith
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
N HERRE leasehold land
Landand  Machinery, held for own
buildings  equipment, use under
heldfor  furniture Motor Construction Investment  operating
ownuse andfixtures  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  properties leases Total
ELERET
BALE HE RE- BRAmSEN
REE GHRER B RIE At REVE BEDMER oL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i Fr T i Tr i i i
Cost: R
At 1 January 2015 W=F-1F-A-H 1,028,097 1,710,340 6,402 176 2,745,015 121,885 123997 2,990,897
Exchange adjustments ERAZE (26,608) (44,525) (212) ) (71,348) — (3072) (74,420)
Additions B 87 3,136 8 1,688 4,993 - — 4,993
Transfer from construction in progress HREEREIR 25 1,638 198 (1,861) — = — =
Transfer from land and buildings held SREAATIREE
for own use (28,078) — — — (28,078) 28078 — —
Disposals LE — (5,166) — — (5,166) — — (5,166)
AL31 December201s REB-REFTSASTCR | 9BS8 18648 8410 _ .. T84 19563 1095 2916304
Accumulated amortisation, ZiHEs  EREESE
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2015 RZE-RF—-A—-H 644,611 1,641,789 6,389 176 2,292,965 39,135 37,488 2,369,588
Exchange adjustments B i % (26,608) (44,525) 212) €] (71,348) — (1,253) (72,601)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) FRFAR (FE5(C) 12,061 8,262 225 = 20,548 3,3% 2,588 26,492
Transfer from construction in progress SR BERTRE = 173 = (173) — — - —
Transfer from land and buildings held EREAATIHREE
for own use (9,015) = = = (9,015) 9,015 = =
Written back on disposals LERE = (4,556) = = (4,556) = = (4,556)
AL31 December201s ] REBTREICASICA ooy 1es 642 . T M N6 B3 2318923
Net book value: SRR :
At 31 December 2015 e o o e = 352,474 64,280 63 — 416,822 98,457 82,102 597,381
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2016 R=E—7E—HA—H 973,523 1,665,423 6,470 — 2,645,416 149,963 120,925 2,916,304
Exchange adjustments RS (27,248) (45,417) (220) - (72,885) - (3,140) (76,025)
Additions e 3,804 8,608 - 1,377 13,789 - - 13,789
Transfer from construction inprogress B EERTR 105 1,272 - (1,377) - - - -
Transfer from land and buildings held ERERATNREE
for own use (62,751) - - - (62,751) 62,751 — -
Disposals HE — (5,143) (980) — (6,123) - - (6,123)
AL31December2016 AR REICASTCA 887433 16743 a0 . T 25N M6 2714 117785 2847945
Accumulated amortisation, RitEY  TERAESS:
depreciation and
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2016 R=E—7F—F—H 621,049 1,601,143 6,402 — 2,228,594 51,506 38,823 2,318,923
Exchange adjustments RS (27,248) (45,417) (220) - (72,885) - (1,332) (74,217)
Charge for the year (note 5(c) FRER (HFES(C) 10,935 5,554 16 - 16,505 4,732 2,536 23,773
Transfer from land and buildings held EREAATIHREE
for own use (21,553) - - - (21,553) 21,553 - -
Written back on disposals LERE — (4,360) (980) — (5,340) — — (5,340)
AL31 December2016 ] RCRRETCASICA 583188 15%6920 ! S8 . T A T 0 2263139
Net book value: SRERE -
At 31 December 2016 R=E—7F+-A=1-H 304,250 67,823 52 — 372,125 134,923 71,758 584,806
[ ]
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(BRABIETIN - BERAEEFHEHE)

11

(b)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment, investment 11
properties and leasehold land (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has transferred part ~ (b)
of the land and buildings held for own use to investment properties with
carrying amount of $31,198,000 due to the change of the purposes of land

and buildings.

ME  BBREHG REDERA
g1 (@

ERAMBERLIONEENREEMEN
RBE_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—RHILtEFE "
REBBIHE R T REEEBIREY
% (FREEA31,198,0007T) °

The analysis of net book value of properties is as (c) YEREFEZIFWOT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Medium term leases REIFRE
— in Hong Kong — BB 492,376 505,878
— outside Hong Kong — BHBLAIN 24,555 27,155
516,931 533,033
Representing: DWAWTE :
Land and buildings held BRLtHEEE
for own use 304,250 352,474
Investment properties LB 134,923 98,457
Interests in leasehold land held EREEETBAMSE
for own use under M E i
operating leases 77,758 82,102
516,931 533,033
Assets leased out under operating leases (d) REHEETZBETETEE

The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos.
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wali, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

AEERBELEMEBMLNEEL BARERK
BRERO-MEZINEMHELA - HAFH K
BE=F nEEREIAKEREY
[ERSEF AT IER - BEALHTE
SRS -

AEBIRE T AT HEHE L HE M ERZ KRR
HERBEMT :

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
F7t T
Investment properties REWME
Within 1 year —FR 14,483 16,738
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFA 9,925 15,950
24,408 32,688
[ ]
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 PE - BREERE BREIYERAE
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)

(e) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2016 is (@) REMER_E—X<E+_A=+—H
$432,620,000 (2015: $396,460,000), which is based on a valuation using 2 A H B B432,620,000T (= F — A F ¢
the investment approach which considers the capitalisation of net rental 396,460,0007T) © AR EEHEITHE - BIE
income receivable from existing tenancies and the reversionary value e AEBRSERBEWLT MZEDERS
of the property after tenancies expire by reference to market sales BREHE (2EEaME EREARS) 2l
transactions. The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of A o (HETIRBAEEMTHEE TR E8ME
surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their RBATET EREIEESMEMmEen
staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation H¥eE AHEERENMEKRERAS
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. HELR -

The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under NREAERESEAVBREELF 135

the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value [ AR EEFE] AER =R AR EEEE

measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified BOBRE=HRMHEE BoAREBEFENE

is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the ZEMIE2ENM NMEEFEMTAEIEZ A

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: BREREEHRET

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. — F—AHE - BEAE —RBASE
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or (BIREFEHREEESABERER
liabilities at the measurement date TG REECFHBERE) stEZRAE

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — F_MEE: FRE R ARE
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (BNREeiERIE— M 7 E R A%
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for ) B RFEREKRT A ERE A
which market data are not available BErEZARE - T ERE AR

BTG EUR 2 A BUR

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant — FZNEE  FRAEATEBRSE
unobservable inputs AEZAR

The significant unobservable input in the fair value measurement is the STEAREMRAZEXTABREE AT

discount rate, which ranged from 3.1% t0 4.1% (2015: 2.9% t0 3.9%). WK BEA3I1%EL1%(ZE—FHF: A

2.9% % 3.9%) °
[
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12 Intangible assets 12 E|EEE
Club
Trademarks debentures Total
5L BT EREH waE
$'000 $'000 $'000
FT FT Tt
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2015 R=—ZE—RF—H—H 39,116 5,473 44,589
Exchange adjustments ME R — 41 (41)
At31December2015 R=B-AFT-A=ST-A M6 ] 542 . 44,548
Accumulated impairment EEHREERE !
losses:
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—H—H 39,116 286 39,402
Exchange adjustments e H AR — (17) (17)
At31December2015 R=FB-RFT_A=F"H sie - 89385
Net book value: BREEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H — 5,163 5,163
Cost: R
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—AH 39,116 5,432 44,548
Exchange adjustments bE AR — (41) (41)
At31December2016 R=BSETZASTZR 39116 . 5391 44507
Accumulated impairment REEHREEE !
losses:
At 1 January 2016 R-E—XF—H—H 39,116 269 39,385
Exchange adjustments Rk — (17) (17)
At31December2016 R=FBAET-A=+T7A 916 252 39368
Net book value: BRENFE
At 31 December 2016 WZTE—RE+_HA=+—H — 5,139 5,139
[ ]
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(BRABHETIN

IR E)

13 Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

company:

13 MELFES
TRESIARRAMAMBARAR -

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
B3y apd BRITRE FrERERD
NEEB A i B & A NG| MEAR FEEK
Best Investments British Virgin 50,000 100% — Investment
International Inc. Islands ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
RBRLES 50,000 fi% REER
BREE
1ETT 2 SRR
60,000,000 100% =
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000 %
BREE
1T BER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (“HKBL") ordinary shares
(note (i)) (PREE (1))
BB 100 A R
E=p il
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
BB 10,000,000 A% A%
R il
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class “A” shares holding
ENE (BR) BRAR BB 18,000 % FEEER
(A) Bz
1,000 100% =
class “B” shares
1,000 A%
(B) Az
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (i)
BN &£ T E B R AR AR EX EEA S EE
(TR A A7 1) (HI3E (ii)) 36,507,000 % 7%
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
B 200,000 A% BEER
g il
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$39,933,000 and sale of
(“SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
£ (BR) BEERA T A E FEREDR TRy 1% 4 65 IR
(A= D REER 1) (R & Gii)) 39,933,000 %7
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13 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) MEATREES ©

Notes:

(i) HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint venture,
Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011. HKBL
holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval
of these financial statements, the joint venture has not commenced

operations.

(i) GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company's subsidiary,
San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the
joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring

on 29 November 2020.

(iii) SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50

years expiring on 4 August 2042.

The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below represents

ME -

@

(i)

(iii)

HKBL B 7B PAZR + —ER B 1T
X BRZZE-——F=AT\BREE
A3z 7 —F8 4 A& Global Brews Hong Kong
Limited B& % AF] - HKBLIBEZ B EH
DA TRE BERMBERERAEZ
B ZAERERE M ABEER -

BEMAENSEER AR AR A 2 HEA
AR (ER) AR A 58 N 0 B
K zaBRERA - REAEREW
FRARZEEHR=TF RITZ
ZE+—-AZTHhBER -

£ (BR) @BERARREINEES
¥ BEREHRTE RITW_F
NADBER -

TR EWENERZER - ENERZ
AEBEME—FEERFERERNMNER
A o THRENMBEEMREREARRE

the amounts before any inter-company elimination. KIERI 2 &5 -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—ARF
$'000 $'000
i T
NCI percentage FEIZER R B Db 8% 8%
Current assets MEEE 50,071 45,810
Non-current assets EMEBEE 26,880 29,463
Current liabilities mEaE (32,917) (43,818)
Non-current liabilities EREBEaE (390,973) (393,167)
Net liabilities BEFE (346,939) (361,712)
Carrying amount of NCI IR R R (B (27,755) (28,937)
Revenue WA 115,060 117,183
Loss for the year FEFHE (8,520) (14,230)
Total comprehensive income FEEEWEBE (8,520) (14,230)
Loss allocated to NCI DA E IR E 1R (682) (1,138)
Cash generated from operating activities KEEIE 2B MA 6,096 12,255
Cash used in investing activities WEEB 2B (2,088) (1,891)
Cash used in financing activities REEE RS M (20) (34)

[
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14 Inventories 14 &
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RHE
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Products in hand and in process RBEmRERMD 30,965 35,223
Materials and supplies Yl R e 18,282 17,208
49,247 52,431
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as ERARARAX 2 FESEINTHT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFSREE (FiEE5(c) 301,248 329,579
15 Trade and other receivables 15 BRESRAMERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
$'000 $'000
T T
Trade receivables JEUR B 5 BRIE 48,253 54,443
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 15(b)) B REREREE (MEE15(0) (3,168) (3,474)
45,085 50,969
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HAa U ER « & RIERFRIE 12,758 17,803
57,843 68,772
The amount of the deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered AEBEFZR—FEAINESER A D
or recognised as expenses after more than one year is $2,036,000 (2015: Kz & R IEN I R D Al 42,036,000 7T
$2,119,000). All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and (ZZ—FF :2,119,0007T) ° FfraEMbE
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses BoRBEREMEKE - e MFEFIETE
within one year. FHE—F R EIEEE A -
The Group held collateral over trade receivables at the end of the reporting AEBFELEEARERESRBEFAUTIE
period with attributable values as set out below: i
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RE
$'000 $'000
T T
Buildings LIES 1,990 1,803
Cash deposits BEFR 2,397 2,510
Bank guarantees SRITHEIR — 750
Cash deposits disclosed above are included in the other creditors and A ESROBEFERWINAREETETZR
accrued charges and are expected to be settled after more than one vear, —FRINNEMEMRERERER  ©
as disclosed in note 18. BT 18 H 55 o
[
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BRESEAMERER (@
The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables AEER A AR E SRS 7TRKE SRS
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value NEEERK - EEVEEERRDER-Z
of the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the —NF+ZA=+—HHWHE -
buildings as at 31 December 2016.
(@) Ageing analysis (@ ERiEkDAT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at the FEUE 5 RRIE (IR RIZEREHR) WEE R
end of the reporting period is as follows: BRERTAT ¢
2016 2015
ZE-XREF —T—hHF
$'000 $'000
¥ 7T
Current AEIEA 39,055 38,996
Less than 1 month past due BEAR DR —EA 3,100 7,280
1to 3 months past due BB A=A 1,115 3,006
More than 3 months but less BERA=EA
than 12 months past due =+ @A 927 610
More than 12 months past due BEEZRTZEA 888 1,077
45,085 50,969
According to the Group's credit policy set out in note 23(a), the general ARIRENI R MY o 23(a) AR B EEHEOR - —
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month BEERHEE ANENAMOTARIIE -
in which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are bt BT ARSI TR ZAEER
within two months from the invoice date. EAR -
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWREZREZRHESE

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 1(i)()).

BEREWE ZRBENREEBREBBERT
8% BRIEA KBS MEUGEEE R DA
EURBERT  BmEEESERERKESK
AP (R 1060) -

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as FARBREREHEHOT
follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
At 1 January R—HA—H 3,474 3,848
Exchange adjustments R (201) (197)
Impairment loss recognised A EBIER 411 444
Impairment loss written back R (EE IR [ (80) (148)
Uncollectible amounts written off ek NN (436) (473)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 3,168 3,474

At 31 December 2016, trade receivables of $4,277,000 (2015: $4,525,000)
were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables were balances in dispute with customers or related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of $3,168,000 (2015:
$3,474,000) were recognised.

RZE—RF+_A=+—8 K&£FEEE
W SERIEE G 4,277,0007T (ZE—FH4F :
4,525,000 7)) =@ R ERE - ERIARE
EIERmNZELPU R EERE  mMizEE
A - RABHRIERAYE - AL
S RIYE3,168,000 7T (—Z— R4 : 3,474,000
JT) BORIBER A o
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BRESEAMERR (@
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) XREEREFBEZEVRESIRE

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

BREERERRBEE ZREREDT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

$'000 $'000

FT T

Neither past due nor impaired AEIEA N ER R 38,753 38,905

Less than 1 month past due BEAR LK —EA 3,100 7,280

1to 3 months past due BEEA—Z==EA 1,115 3,006
More than 3 months but less BHRA=(EA

than 12 months past due =2+_@A 870 564

More than 12 months past due BEEAZRTZ[EA 138 163

5,223 11,013

43,976 49,918

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

RE R MEREZBKESRE - BRT
HPR BRI EP » FTATER R -

BIMENMEREBEZREESRARSEZER
HEFGCENERNTFER - BAELER
HAEEEYESANNE  EEEHREE
AptiE LeRIRIE B - AR DRRELLE
RFRIAR 2R

16 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 16 MEWRHEFREREAT  AREEL
fellow subsidiaries and related companies FIRFAZEAFIRER
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related BRTEESRIBERE HIERIZ RN - B
companies are unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed repayment REIERAT - BRMB AT REZERR]
terms except for the following trade-related amounts which are repayable RIBEER - 2 ERERTEEER
under normal trade terms:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Amounts due from holding companies FEUGERR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries R ZHB A AERIE 15,148 7,140
Amounts due to holding companies JERTERR A A
and fellow subsidiaries PR ES NG (496) (402)
Amounts due to related companies JE S A A m)BRIE (2,544) (957)
The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2016 HESGHE &R T —R"FE_F—H
and 2015. F+ZA=1+—RIWKRBH -
Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies, BE N R BRI R R S AR A E)
the ultimate holding company of which has significant influence over the HAEEBEATLENRT -
Group.
——
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17 Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17

(@

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise: (a)

HeRkERR&RERBITHFER
RERERREER RRITERERE -

2016 2015
e i —T-EF
$'000 $'000
T T
Bank deposits within three months of GRS A=EARA
maturity when placed KSR T 3K 58,851 51,280
Cash at bank and in hand RITEERRS 52,266 46,438
Cash and cash equivalents fRa MR K
in the consolidated statement RirEHEmERT
of financial position and rRe MERREIER
consolidated cash flow statement 111,117 97,718
Bank deposits with more than FHREREE ABBA=EA
three months to maturity KSR T 3K
when placed 46,602 50,882

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2016

RZZE—RF+_RA=+—08 RekEH

include $25,206,000 (2015: $23,564,000) placed with banks in Mainland
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

REAB RRITHFRBET R T BN MR
1725,206,0007C ( — & — F 4 © 23,564,000
U) - HEFRAXHEBFBEMHHERRR &
SNESEARPRE ] ©

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash (b) BRBAER (58 BREEBE R
generated from operations: SRARHR :
2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET—hF
Note $'000 $'000
BiaE Tt Tt
Profit/(l0ss) before taxation BEATEF, (Ei8) 5,927 (16,053)
Adjustments for: T FIE(EH A
Amortisation of land lease premium THE + Hh I8 2 Eh 5Y 5(c) 2,536 2,588
Depreciation of property, plant M MERREZITE
and equipment 5(C) 16,505 20,548
Depreciation of investment properties — &E&EWE 2T E 5(c) 4,732 3,356
Interest expense FMBEXH 5(a) 5,454 4,373
Interest income FIEUA 4 (857) (887)
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets — H & IERENE = 2 F & F 4 (1,253) (2,351)
Foreign exchange losses GNEE 5 a7 BT e 2,478 1,997
Changes in working capital: OB BN 7 S
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE R (3Em) 3,184 (1,006)
Decrease in trade and other receivables  fEURNE 5 & H b ARIE
IR 10,959 13,826
(Increase)/decrease in net amounts FEUWIZERR A R K
due from holding companies and EEL NS
fellow subsidiaries SRR (380) R (6,395) 4,294
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due FEUS A& A RIARIA
from related companies 2z (&) R (1,270) 403
Increase/(decrease) in amounts FEfSE:E A RERIA
due to related companies 2380 GRid) 1,114 (655)
Decrease in trade and other payables — FE{E 5 & HALBEIE 2 5 > (15,858) (7,334)
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities  R{RIEF B &2 H (37) (172)
Cash generated from operations IR VISR 27,219 22,927
I
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18 Trade and other payables 18 EfEZRHEMIER

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-RHE

$'000 $'000

FT Tt

Trade payables B E S ER1E 37,564 46,300
Other creditors and accrued charges H Ath FESBRIE 51,014 58,160
88,578 104,460

Other creditors and accrued charges include provisions for advertising HUEMNREELREREAREESREE
and promotion costs of $11,638,000 (2015: $17,834,000). B E D R A11,6380007T (—ZF — f 4
17,834,0007%) °

BEARER—FRINOEMBENEREAR
AR B DRI /4,967,000 (ZF—HF :
6,203,0007T) ° FTE HAb &N E 5 R E AR

The amounts of other creditors and accrued charges expected to be
settled after more than one year are $4,967,000 (2015: $6,203,000). All of
the other trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one

year. BHEFHE—FRAZN ©
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as FERNE ZREREE A ZREROT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
¥ T
Current and less than 1 month past due REEAR B A DR —1{E A 34,716 44,443
1 to 3 months past due BEEA—Z==@A 2,493 1,574
3 to 6 months past due BEAR==/NEA 180 247
More than 6 months past due BEAR Z RN EA 175 36
37,564 46,300

AEBN—RNRERENERAHRR—=
MEA REIE o Fity - EdREEI NGB A
PR EAMBBRARBMIGEREAERME

The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from the
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice

date. =EAR
19 Loan from an intermediate holding company 19 HPHAEELATFRZER
At 31 December 2016, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZZB—RNF+ZA=1+—H FMEEA
was repayable as follows: Al ERRER THIHAREE -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RE
$'000 $°000
T Tt
Within 1 year or on demand —EFRHIEREREFERE 25,448 —
After 1 year but within 2 years —F B BEMFERN 50,895 50,866
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERAFA 114,515 139,881
165,410 190,747
190,858 190,747
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19 Loan from an intermediate holding company 19 HRAEERATFRZER (@
(Continued)
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in RNERARIZERAEERR IR
fifteen equal instalments from September 2017 and bears interest at one —tFNABHS TREEE  AENFIEX
year LIBOR plus 1.5% which ranged from 2.01% to 3.20% during the year RFHRBRITEENEN15% @ &=
(2015:2.01% t0 2.59%). B201%2320% (ZE—HAFNE201%E

2.59%) °
20 Employee retirement benefits 20 EREHKEIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) TERBFEMKEE

The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordnance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of the Hong Kong), which covers 13% (2015: 13%) of the
Group's employees. The plan is administered by an independent trustee,
with the assets held separately from those of the Group.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a benefit based on
their completed years of service and salary on the date of leaving service.

Contributions to the plan are made in accordance with the
recommendations of an independent actuary who values the retirement
plan at regular intervals. The latest actuarial valuations of the plans were
at 31 December 2016 and were prepared by independent qualified staff of
Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these defined
benefit retirement plan is 82% (2015: 74%) covered by the plan assets held
by the trustees.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risk, such as interest rate risk,
investment risk and salary risk.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

REBR/HE13% (ZE—1F : 13%) ZEE

RHERREMENRGE - ZEt 80— 28

MERARRER  WEAAREEZEESFHBY

B¥E - X B AT iRE B 2 Rk H & MR

FHAHE - SFBIZHRDRIE—RBUBE

EEZ%E%;’%ET © ZAEEENE B ARG BIME
A -

RIBEZATE - RINEEBRARBRREE
SRR RIS FENFH L IEFREN

RIRETEI Z BRI BRB B E R 2 2%
BN c ZETEIZ BRFBEHEIR _Z—
F+ A=+ BHRERENRIBIEES
BB EE B8R ETT - BF
HERARAEEIREZATEEFRKEIRT
BRITZETET R (T —HF : 74%)
SZEAANFEZTEEERRE -

ZEtBl e AE A BERR - W XE
% WERRMFERE

REA TSR R BER 2 KRBT

2016 2015

—E—RF —T—hF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Present value of funded obligations BEYEENRE 95,980 99,080
Fair value of plan assets HEBEEZARE (78,136) (72,141)
Retirement benefit liabilities RBARENEE 17,844 26,939

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff revenue and future changes in actuarial assumptions. The
Group expects to pay $5,751,000 in contributions to the defined benefit
retirement plan in 2017.

Lt #Rin BETREIE R BE —FR AT - A
i BRRAENEE B E 2 BN RS
AHEIBEZ RRBRBARTFBERRZARR
HE) AU MEERZERERARK+ —E
AZENFRDRARE - AREBEFE_F
—tHF 15,751,000 T4 [ FHRFBRIKET
2l MRRIE -

105



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)
20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREHEER &
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEEAEMWEE (&)

(i)

Plan assets consist of the following:

(in

AHEIBERE

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hF

$'000 $°'000

FT T

Equity securities [ 35,239 31,959
Bonds BE& 39,928 40,038
Cash HE 2,969 144
78,136 72,141

REEER  ITASETEEAGELRN
K WHMREBCR KRB ZER - 18EH8E
BR2A—RITEZIRBEEELEE M
55% M fTES - (ZE—HE : 45% IR B 5
4BE N 55% BFES) °

An asset-liability matching study was performed by the trustees
periodically to analyse the outcome of the strategic investment policies.
The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity securities across
a range of industries and 55% in government bonds (2015: 45% in equity
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds).

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) ERRANEBENREZD
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AhF
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January Rn—A—AH 99,080 95,102
Remeasurements: (e
— Actuarial losses arising from — AR RBRREFHELED
changes in demographic assumptions BREER 13 —
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — B BRERE B EER
changes in financial assumptions fEEEE (5,874) 2,026
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — R EEAR
changes in experience BEEE (74) 638
(5,935) 2,714
Benefits paid by the plan TS 2@ F (3,586) (5,408)
Current service cost IR AR TS A AN 5,085 5114
Interest cost F BB A 1,336 1,558
At 31 December Rnt+=-—A=+—8H 95,980 99,080

106

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 6.3

years (2015: 6.5 years).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREH#HEERN &
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEEIEMREE (&)

(iv)

(Vi)

Movements in plan assets:

v)  HEEEZ2E

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-RE

$'000 $°000

T Tt

At 1 January Rn—A—H 72,141 74,987
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer BEXNEET IR 5,670 5,785
Benefits paid by the plan FTEIZ T 2 12 A (3,586) (5,408)
Interest income FEMA 1,000 1,267
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income STEIBEZBR (TEEFEWA) 3,123 (4,282)
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets STEIBEZITHEX (212) (208)
At 31 December Rt+t=-—A=+—H 78,136 72,141

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (V)

income are as follows:

WA 2ERARERZFNT

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hHF
$'000 $'000
FT FT
Current service cost IR AR &5 Ak 2R 5,085 5,114
Net interest on net defined benefit liability THEENEaE 2T EFEEE 336 291
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets FEEEZITHHX 212 208
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss RIBEP R Y 5,633 5,613
Actuarial (gains)/losses BE (BF) /& (5,935) 2,714
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income sTEIEEZ B (TEERSWA) (3,123) 4,282
Total amounts recognised in other REMEEBERERLZ
comprehensive income (note 9) B (MizE9) (9,058) 6,996
Total defined benefit (income)/costs TERBAE MR AN 42 %8 (3,425) 12,609
The current service cost, net interest B AR RIS A & E s AR
on net defined benefit liability and FEBEZFEFEIIN
administrative expenses paid from plan assets T alamERA
are recognised in the following line items ZIEB R
in the consolidated income statement:
— Cost of sales — $HER K 808 766
— Selling and distribution expenses — SHE R IERAZ 2,934 2,956
— Administrative expenses — TR 1,891 1,891
5,633 5,613
Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (vi) FENRBERBMGRESDTAT -
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hHF
Discount rate (p.a.) BRIRK () 1.70% 1.40%

Expected rate of future salary increases (p.a.)

AR RIS R X (BF)

4.00%-5.00%

5.00%
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 {EEEFREF (B

(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEABMAKTE B

(viy  (Continued) (vi) (8&)

The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at THDH AT B EBR0.25% 2 &%
31 December 2016 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 0.25% FREMNEBEN _E—AFE+_A=1+—8
change in the significant actuarial assumptions: &%/ CRd) ar -
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ET—hF
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25%
#H00.25% W2 0.25% H#00.25% A 0.25%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Frx T T T
Discount rate AEIR = (1,518) 1,559 (1,693) 1,741
Salary increase rate o B 1,623 (1,588) 1,782 (1,741)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes LR ESTEBEREERE ZE(LET
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take R SR ED T TEEBRERE
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions. IR MERAN o

(b) Defined contribution retirement plan (b) TEBEMFCERAGTE

0} Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the (i) REBEEECRBIMEAERETERE) &
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's B &5 A i 30 8 A0 A i E BEAE AR AR
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident TEMES - AMAREEHBHERAES
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined & o RBERESEHE I —ElRBLEE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate TEABERNEREITRKEE - RIBEEH
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to e AEEREEES AR EELH#
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, » o HEREEBMARMNSS.  HEGAEME
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to A B & m7KF A 30,000 T 51 31 7B H A9
the plan vest immediately. RENRFERIES -

(ii) Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FREFBATEE APEBN2ENF LR
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required to KEFENKE - REEAH P REKRS
contribute 11.00% to 14.00% (2015: 12.00% to 14.00%) of employees’ FEIREREBRENERES BB A
remuneration to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only EEME R 11.00%ZE 14.00% ( — T —HF :
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the 12.00% %= 14.00%) ° NEE G RRAKE
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to FrEME—RBEAREBERRRKSEEIAEE
these schemes vest immediately. A BRI o HRHSIER M ERERRE -

[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BERAEEFHEHE)

21

(a)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMEBRAERMRINZFHRERIE
financial position
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: () CERAZEEHREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the W MBARARERRZBEERIBEE R
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during BECHEKE D RFERN BT -
the year are as follows:
Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
nERHE EWERE
BAEHINE k=& BIEF
ZEE ZREEBSR 28 BEEE Fok ]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tt
Deferred tax arising from: BEBERE
At 1 January 2015 R-ZF—hF—A—H 54,517 (80) (3,319) (48,631) 2,487
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss — FMEzH
(note 6(a)) 8,/ (GEA) (HizEé() 585 (26) 269 856
Charged to equity (note 9) PRI (F3EE9) — (1,700) — (1,700)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RE+=-B=1—H
and 1January 2016 k=F—7 & —HF—H 55,102 (52) (4,445) (48,362) 2,243
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss — #ME
(note 6(a)) 1k, GEA) (BizE () (761) @) (29) (778)
Credited to equity (note 9) Rig=PEA (FEE9) — 1,504 — 1,504
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+-A=1—H 54,341 (33) (2,948) (48,391) 2,969
Deferred tax assets not recognised: (b) RERZELEHREEE:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

AEBRPEANMNB AR RARRL AL T
P B IR E TSI BRI IR & E M TR -

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—hF

$'000 $'000

F T Tt

Tax losses HIBEE 356,219 474,709
Deductible temporary differences AR TR ER 203,059 278,794
559,278 753,503

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits
against which the above items can be utilised.

IRIEDRIHE S 1(p) & ETER - R R BERE
EARRAM B A B R KA RS RAERTI R
FPAEINE A & - A S B RFER E5IE
ARSI BT IBEE °
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMERRLRFRINZHREBRIE (&)
financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (Continued) (b) XRBRZIEZEHEEZE:@ (&)
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be BERATBEHBARIREZNBEEIEREL
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated HEEREER - BEIMBEHIT -
and will expire in the following years:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
$'000 $'000
T T
2016 —ET—RF — 134,242
2017 —ET—+F 88,481 94,471
2018 —T—)N\F 34,477 36,812
2019 —E—NF 40,746 43,504
2020 —ETF 50,266 58,110
2021 —E-—4F 37,896 —
251,866 367,139
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $104,353,000 AR B SR W R M B 18 85 18 4% 104,353,000 7T
(2015: $107,570,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. —ZE—HF :107,570,0007T) * WHIBITH
TEIROI T A EIE -
22 capital, reserves and dividends 22 BF - EERER
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HEEIIEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REEZGREERT S NFENRERS
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the ERGEER T ERAIH - AARZEHE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the AN FYRFREBFBRUATI
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and Eo
the end of the year are set out below:
Share Retained
capital profits Total
B Wi e HEE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
B 5t FIT T T
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-ZT—HF—F—H&EH 26 252,524 227,789 480,313
Changes in equity for 2015: “E-AEREREE:
Actuarial gains and losses of TE BB R AR ARG 2l
defined benefit retirement plan,  ZEE&F REE
net of tax (BEi1%) — (5,896) (5,896)
Loss for the year FEEE — (20,253) (20,253)
Dividends approved in respect of = —BABUEE #H A& 2 IR 2
the previous year 22(b) — (3,736) (3,736)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=ZE—AF+=-HA=+—H
and 1 January 2016 RZZ2—XF—HA—B#&&% 252,524 197,904 450,428
Changes in equity for 2016: —E-RFREEEE
Actuarial gains and losses of TE R ARG S
defined benefit retirement plan, 2 & RF RERE
net of tax (BR%i12) — 7,554 7,554
Loss for the year FEER — (4,949) (4,949)
Balance at 31 December 2016 HW-Z—X<FE+-HA=+—H
GEER 26 252,524 200,509 453,033
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22 cCapital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 22 BEx - - FHREREE (@
(b) Dividends (b) RE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to RERERI M FARRIESFZEAZB
the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year TFEERE
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Final dividend in respect of A LA R S A+
the previous financial year, approved and ZIBAFEEAREIRE
paid during the year, of Nil per ordinary share T REZ T
(2015: $0.01 per ordinary share) (ZZ2—AF : FREBEA%0.017T) — 3,736
(c) Share capital () m=x
2016 2015
—E-RF ZT—hF
No. of No. of
shares shares
BRHEE RnHERE
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
Tt T
Ordinary shares, issued LB B8T
and fully paid: RS RRA :
At 1 January and R—A—Bk
31 December +=—A=1+—H 373,570 252,524 373,570 252,524
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, RIEEA CARUER) 21351 - RARIRH T
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value. BEZEEE-
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LRRFFEABREDIRHERARE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AEARERE LRHE—REROHKR—F -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRARBWFGREE  FIAEEBREZE
the Company’s residual assets. R&E#EE o

—_—
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22 cCapital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 22 BE - - FHREREE (&

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) HEHEERAZ

(i) Capital reserve (i) ERfEE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BARETE—HPEWE AR 2 REEF
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. B EE 2 i o

(ii)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) ERRBHE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange PR B R E R EERETEANZHEA
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of R BRREAZMAELEZELNRBES
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences ¥IEH (ZRIEMBRINMEM B AR 2 FE
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of B) ZERERE - ZEBREME16) ez
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt SETBER MERE ©
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) 2IkfEE
At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves available for RZE—RE+-_A=+—B8B B¥ &
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under BLRARER)Y B2 IEXEE > Al
the provision of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was RKEBE T AR EREAEAZGERES
$200,509,000 (2015: $197,904,000). 200,509,0007¢ ( = Z — A 4 : 197,904,000

TT) °

(f) Capital management f BAREE
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard AREEEEEAMTERZEEREEEK
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue WIS B WmEE BRI OISR A A
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, EMiERRmERRGTE  ARR/KFEREE
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing EREE  UWEBRESSEMNBERA -
access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure AEBEBETHEEARARERARN LE
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might B AEREREEHRER T A g &
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and SEBEKTFERIFNEARRTERAOES N
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to 1RFE 7 BEVEFE  WHEEKEIRER S
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. HEREEEH A -
Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital structure REBNERNEBEH R AEMEITHER
on the basis of an adjusted net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose the g EATEMER—H- - AAEEA
Group defines adjusted netdebt as loan from an intermediate holding B AEBTHEHAZRFEEAPNIEZERA
company plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less bank deposits and B2 EF R ARHERIRIE BB R TR IR
cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of S RERBSIER o KHBEENBIE AR
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends. wAKE D BARGTRENRARE
During 2016, the Group'’s strategy was to maintain the adjusted net-debt RIT—NF AEBZ FR2EHIE AR
to equity ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to BERFEBLEERVI00%EEAN - & T #HH
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets SRR REES T @K
to reduce debt. IR ESHEEEDURERFEE -
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22 cCapital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 22 BEx - - FHREREE (@
(f)  capital management (Continued) ) BXREEE)
The net-debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as R-IE—RNFR_E—HF+-_A=+—H
follows: ZERFBAELERNT
2016 2015
—~E —hf
$'000 $'000
F Tt
Loan from an intermediate fEﬁE 795G
holding company less AR ZER
bank deposits and cash and /Jﬁﬁﬁf KRR E
cash equivalents REZERIREIER 33,139 42,147
Adjusted net debt LA EFH 33,139 42,147
Equity e 558,084 544,986
Adjusted capital ERBER 558,084 544,986
Adjusted net-debt to equity ratio KARERNFEABL R 6% 8%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally N EHAEAHE R B EZ S IMEE AR
imposed capital requirements. o
23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 MEREEERAAMEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the REBE—REKBRFPFEEE  REBE
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these & MEERRINERE o  AEEEDEUZES
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the EpREERANEEMEAEEZSRAR 20
Group to manage these risks are described below. BEBBUR RIEY - Ft T -
(@ Credit risk (@ FEERE
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other REBMEERREERAENE S K HA

receivables, bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment
and an established payment record. The general credit period is payment
by the end of the month following the month in which sales take place.
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is
obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to have
higher credit risk are required to trade on a cash basis. Credit control staff
monitor trade receivables and follow up collections.

FRIENBRESMERBELIER - ERERAE
EHR - MASREERZSEERR -

FEERBINETHHHEEREEREETL
MRS MEE - —REERIHE A
#9 A 03 seabs A o AEEGHR LRSI
/18 - |RITHERARTRRERER - &
B #yﬂﬁ*ﬁfﬂmﬁﬁﬂ C BIAR ST
cEEEZFASSERERESTEANRR

e Hm

ELI&ZTA °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEERTIN - HIRBBHE)

23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(@)  Credit risk (Continued) (@) EEEE® @)
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual REFZZEREBIEZERNEPHTE
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period, 25% 2o PNEEH 25%(ZFE—AHF 1 19%) &
(2015: 19%) and 77% (2015: 56%) of the total trade and other receivables 77% (ZZ—HF : 56%) HEKE S K EAM
was due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers RIEDRIRERNEESGATFRARES ¢
respectively.
The Group do not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group AEBWERAEEEGERMEEEERR -
to credit risk.
The Group’s bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed REBWR S RERIRSEREZEGFHNER
with financial institutions with sound credit ratings and the management AR R e R o Bt - BERERRAR
considers the Group's exposure to credit risk is low. SEmENERRER AR -
The Group's exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing such AEEAZNEZERBEEEERREA-F
risk were unchanged from 2015. —HFHER °

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) FEBELREK
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own BRELELEaEHEAGNIESEERIT
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements BAEBERRTHERERHESTE - U
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate EREGFE MRS FEE N T B SEEE
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions and related AHRETHESREET  UneEEBEE
parties to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. 7 RmEhEeE ko
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23

(b)

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

23

(b)

EREREERARRE

REBESER (8)

TERRAEEREE AN BREZ AR
HREFADIT - WAFTTORBRRSRE
(BRI EERFAEZFIB T - a8
FRER  MEEAER ZREFEZAE
) RARERHRER 2 & FENR B ME
AT 22 o

2016
—E-AF

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
EHNLREBRNELRE

More than More than
Within 1 year hut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR%
RERE —F% mE#R
) EBRER BEER Lt REHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Trade and other payables ENE 5 R EMERIE 88,578 — — 88,578 88,578
Loan from an intermediate RNERAEZER
holding company 31,571 55,611 119,159 206,341 190,858
Amounts due to holding companies  FERHERR A 7]
and fellow subsidiaries N EES NG R 6,990 - - 6,990 6,990
Amounts due to related companies  fEfRfEBE A alBRIE 6,130 — — 6,130 6,130
133,269 55,611 119,159 308,039 292,556
2015
—T-RF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHEREENRSE
More than More than
Within 1year but 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR
REREF —F1& RE%
gl) BMFA BERFR ks FEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T TIT T
Trade and other payables ENE 5 R EMEE 104,460 — — 104,460 104,460
Loan from an intermediate RNERARZER
holding company 5193 55,550 145,557 206,300 190,747
Amounts due to holding companies  FERHERR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries LEZHBATEE 5,375 — — 5,375 5,375
Amounts due to related companies  fEffREE A BIBRIE 5,016 — — 5016 5,016
120,044 55,550 145,557 321,151 305,598
[ ]
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEREp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing $%IZ7TUTJ—L S EERABERELE - K
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash BRI BRI ENE KT - REBH
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate E.I@J“W B RSB E R T3C() ©
borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FlZ=aEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s loan from THRARNEBREERZRNIERARIZE
an intermediate holding company at the end of the reporting period: T2 F) R
2016 2015
b AL —E-RF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
BRRIE x| HEEHMZE ]
% $'000 % $'000
% T % Tt
Variable rate borrowings: SFENFEER
— Loan from an intermediate — BNERR AR ZER
holding company 3.20 190,858 2.59 190,747
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SEMEDWT
At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZF—AF+ZA=+—0  fEflkL
100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, F/THR—BET  EEMAESERERET
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and the TEHBERT - AEERFERBZERTN R
Group's retained profits by approximately $1,909,000 (2015: increased/ 2 AR HN1491,909,000 7T (= F
decreased the Group's loss after taxation and retained profits by —HF  NEERBRHEEBEF LR R F
approximately $1,907,000). The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the 7J[1/ﬁw\1,907,0007_t) o R RBETETE AR
entity which has drawn down the loan had unrecognised tax losses for BEHIETS B BRI B A AR A48 -
deferred tax purposes and it is not probable that it will generate future %F”‘ B AR FERTL BB E R IER
taxable profits against which the tax losses can be utilised. IH - AREIESGBE -
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in A E USSR RAEBMOBRRERT
the Group's profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits in respect (B18) RE2F AN 2 BIEE( - TTRRASE
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate ERGEERFMBFENZEEFAETA 58K
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The SEHBESRFERBEBAES - REBK
impact on the Group's profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits is MEeREF (BiE) RBAAEFNTERNZ
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a change LRI 2B ANFEEER -
in interest rates.
[
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23

(d)

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros
and Japanese Yen.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
all sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars
or United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Japan. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar,
management do not expect that there will be any significant currency
risk associated with such United States dollar denominated transactions.
For transactions denominated in Euros and Japanese Yen, management
monitor the level of exposure closely and take actions such as an earlier
settlement considering movements in the exchange rate.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to
currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2015.

23

(d)

EREREERARRE

SME LB

AEETEREERS B3R KEZH
B8R N EEL SN (A% 50 E
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(d)
0]

Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk

23

(d)
)

The following tables detail the Group’s significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group's
presentation currency and the exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form part of the net investment in

subsidiaries are excluded.

EREREERARRE 5

SMEE R (%)
Az HNE LB

TERRAEBSEEAWIEAEBERGEE
BHENECHEREEXBEMET ZIMNER
BIELFFADN - TRTBREEBEAELH
BRRHEL AR (R ERER S EK KB
RAERFRE N — &) MELWER - T
RONSREMRER B 2 EXRF R EEIER
52 B o FEEREBUAINGE QR 2 B 5 ®
??‘EE%ZJS%E’\J%@JEMHﬁEEE’U%%EjﬁT\E
A ©

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SNERR (RBTTE)
2016 2015
—g-XE “Z-%f
United United
States States
dollars Euros JPY dollars Euros PY
ES [E¢:3 Ax e B BT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr TIT Tt T
Trade and other receivables TEWE 5 K EMEEE 834 1,220 — 2,107 N —
Amounts due from holding EBERR AR
companies and fellow RERNBAAERE
subsidiaries 8,390 — — 7,132 — —
Bank deposits RITFER 23,394 — — 15,502 — —
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRERBSHER 14,090 8 13 8,417 15 13
Trade and other payables ENE 5 R EMRE (6,395) (1,388) — (4,668) (234) —
Loan from an intermediate RNERAEZER
holding company (190,858) — — (190,747) — —
Amounts due to holding FEfTIERR A R)
companies and fellow PGS NG
subsidiaries (6,990) — — (5,311) — —
Amounts due to related [ BB ARIRIE
companies (1,844) (5) (753) 611) (5) (66)
Net exposure ERAETFE (159,379) (165) (740)  (168,179) (183) (53)
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SpEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d)y EREE (E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETFAEERGEEARAERRERZ
profit/(loss) after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen INETE RN E BEE AEB ZRTIE (&
if foreign exchange rates to which the group entities had significant B) /BN EFBENZREE  BRE
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date, HERERESHTE - plitkms - ERE&EB T
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is RETZRNBBERAR EIZETLE
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the HEB ZEEEBTE - WA + ARKEE
United States dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in T TE R SR BE S 1S 2 S8 Rt & I LA 30850
movement in value of the United States dollar against other currencies. EE1E  BREERERREEMEZIRL
Also, the tax effect was assumed to be nil for the entities which had BIE - EEBRT EBAEE o
unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable
that they will generate future taxable profits against which tax losses
could be utilised.
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-AHF
Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/  Increase/
(decrease) (increase) Decrease/ (decrease) (decrease)  Decrease/
in foreign in profit (increase)  inforeign infoss  (increase)
exchange after inretained  exchange after  inretained
rates  taxation profits rates taxation profits
SHNEEZR RBEEERFN  RHBA NEEX REEREBE  ZHAF
tr/ "/ WD/ =/ i/ "o/
(Tk) (m) (m) (T) (R) ($Zm)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt T
United States dollars = 10% 569 569 10% (483) 483
(10)% (569) (569) (10)% 483 (483)
Euros B¢ 10% 16 16 10% (18) 18
(10)% (16) (16) (10% 18 (18)
JPY =hin 10% 74 74 10% (5) 5
(10%) (74) (74) (10%) 5 (5)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency
and the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2015.

EXRMENZAMBERERNEEEEEREIA
R EBHE (RE2MEN  BIREHE
AZEXRNBAEIIT) 2 ANFE Bz

A=A
X% K

BRSO BRRINEEX 2B ARE
FETEASBMA LN AE R (EREEE
PRIMERR R T A - BFREE R
BT BT 2 AL B K VR B L A e W e FE A
BRIE - WEBHRREBEHEET —FE&
FEMEXAEEEBHNEIEE o BN
BEBEBIAINKIE AR 2 B RRBEK
AEBZ2FEEMES 2Z8 - ZBAN
R~ B -NFER AR -
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23 Financial risk management and fair values 23 SHEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) 2AREE
Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 19), HEIRR AT REMB AR REEAFRNIE
other non-trade balances with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries ,\%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁiﬁéi’jﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁg BEETE
and related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed ZHT . R A RIS (HEE19) BR4h o
repayment terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their EREZ IR &Eﬁﬁi\ ‘ﬁfﬁZ%%T\ﬁ °
fair values.
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEHMEXREREERABNEREEEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2016 and HEER - E—-RFER_E—AF+_A
2015. =t—BENARBEITESERER -
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =SsHEERTHEEEE
Provision for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives of $28,653,000 PrI0 - B N E B R TR 128,653,000 7T
(2015: $32,094,000) are either included in trade and other payables or (ZZ—FRF :32,094,0007T) —BEFAE
offset against trade receivables when the Group has a legally enforceable NESREMEEE EAREBEHES LR
right to set off the recognised amounts and intends to settle on a net D RS UHERFHEEELER
basis. 2HEWE 5RIBRGE % RAERAE R
HEH o
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, NEBFARSHSIEAS TREIKE F8RE1E
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade AR ZERSHAENESEES -
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set WEEEEWE SEEEE RN BEREAKNE
off the recognised amounts. BV e ARt RSO RS S -
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TREFZ P HRG B EReRIA
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. 2 BRMEE °
2016
—E-NE
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the in the of financial
the statement statement of statementof  position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBRRE REBRRE R BRRERE
ERZSRIA EHRELR REBRRR  EHEEZE—
A% IAz%HE ZRE KBRS EAR B
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
M r i i i i
Financial assets tREE
Trade and other receivables [EWE S REMEE 15
— Trade receivables — kB 5EE 71,726 (26,641) 45,085 (2,397) 42,688
—Financial assets not inthe scope — S BAETEHE
of offsetting disclosures ZHREEE 12,758 - 12,758 - 12,758
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables ERESREMEE 18
—Trade payables — ERESEE 64,205 (26,641) 37,564 - 37,564
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — 4B A BT R
of offsetting disclosures ZHREEE 51,054 - 51,014 - 51,014
[
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23

(f)

Financial risk management and fair values 23 SpEREERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) <sREERSREGEESE B
(Continued)
2015
—T-RF
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the statement
instruments in offset in the inthe of financial
the statement statement of statement of position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBHRAE REHRRE REBRRERE
ERERSHIA RiEESR ROBMRRE RSB TE—
kx| TEZSE - WEE S A T8
Note $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Mz i i T T i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables ENE SR EMEE 15
— Trade receivables —EKEHERE 76877 (25,908) 50969 (2510) 48459
—Financial assets notinthe scope ~ — @BAEIEE
of offsetting disclosures LBREE 17,803 — 17,803 — 17,803
Financial liabilities SRERE
Trade and other payables ERNESREMERE 18
— Trade payables —ENBHERE 72,208 (25,908) 46,300 — 46,300
— Financial liabilities not in the scope  — $BA BT
of offsetting disclosures L BREE 58,160 — 58,160 — 58,160

The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their
net amounts as presented in the statement of financial position that are
disclosed in the above tables are measured in the statement of financial

position at amortised cost.

The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the statement of

financial position are measured on the same basis.

ERABRBEEEARYEARRD 25 2 2R
BENRSRBEEZERE  UERRMBIRRER
hEF BRI ARSI o

EXRMAIIERMBIRRRFEH 2 SRR
MERIEAESIER
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24 cCommitments 24 i
(@) capital commitments outstanding at 31 December @ R=B—AE+=A=+—HB X%
2016 not provided for in the financial statements were B RPBE RN ERREFES
as follows: MmE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—RF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Contracted for &4 — —
Authorised but not contracted for BEHLEBRETL 8,437 6,750
8,437 6,750

(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease (b) R=B—XRE+=ZA=+—8 '  HE

payments under non-cancellable operating leases were FAHEECEHEMENS 2 RRER
payable as follows: HEXRBEWT :
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AEF
$'000 $'000
¥t T
Land and buildings TREE
Within 1 year —F R 1,231 1,309
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFNA — 1,218
1,231 2,527
The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties under operating REEWERERHABRBKEHEMHEEZE
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to four years BE - #%SHE—RyFAH—ZME - 1
with an option to renew each lease upon expiry when all terms are BEEEEEIHEEZEDR  BRMEER
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. B EFEE  SELEHETTREHA
e -
——

122



BEENEEHER AT ZB—NEER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Eﬁ%iﬁ%‘%ﬁﬁi

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRARBIERIN  BRBEFHEH

25

(a)

Material related party transactions 25

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions:

EXREALES

BAMBRRAEREZR S REHRI » K
SEERTATEABEALRS

Transactions with group companies (a) KERAXEBRERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
-] Y (fF) EEEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—~E —RF —E-RE —T-RHEF
Note $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000
B aE T T T T
Purchases from A= (i)
— intermediate holding companies — AR A A 2,344 2,982 (448) (342)
— fellow subsidiaries — RRKBAF 369 4,674 (48) (60)
— related companies — BB AT 26,311 21,856 (2,544) (957)
Sales to i (i)
— an intermediate holding company — FR M EAZA A 190,031 180,422 15,135 7,124
— fellow subsidiaries — RRKEAR 260 133 13 16
Royalty payments to SREFEER (i
— intermediate holding companies — ':F')| ERAT] 157 151 (12) (12)
— a related company JER/NG] 1,702 2,116 (3,586) (4,059)
Interest expense payable to FEZH
— an intermediate holding — BNERAR
company (iii) 5,454 4,373 (514) (405)
Advertising and promotion subsidy  UgR MR A FE S
from an intermediate holding K Tis HE E R A
company (iv) 21,038 24,895 — —
Notes: FIE
0} Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms 0} HERPIREFTRE 2 ERETT - AEE

mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are
set out in note 16.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a minority
shareholder for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing
agreements.

During the year, an intermediate holding company waived royalties payable
by the Group amounting to $447,231 (2015: $871,000), which is not included
in the amounts disclosed above.

(iii) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding
company.
(iv) Advertising and promotion subsidy was received from an intermediate

holding company for promotion of certain brands in the PRC.

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, except for the purchases from related companies, which the
directors do not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

KEER Z IR T EE 16 NFIRR o

RSN REAREE G BERERRERR
AHAEEEEATE

(ii) SMEEERBRESFERME] - BEM
R RN T MR A B R IR A
RHEA -

RAFE  FNERAGRMEARNEED
BEHEER MBI T (ZE—RHF:
871,0007T) * k& IR E BIEEIA AT
WEHDIEF -

(iii) MEZ BT B MER D RINER

(iv) REFR MR AR B 5 K 5 HE R
BRTYRRRE T IR TEh BIROHERS -

*ETFLW%EE‘J tEX 5 (BRRER
ZHRIN) Tﬁﬁi?"ﬁk 25 ° Iﬁgﬁﬁﬁflﬂﬂ
ARREFHRBEMERRRITERR

BER S e

—
123



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R = HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

124

25 Material related party transactions (Continued) 25 EXREALTES @
(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HKEERHMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
x| B () ERER
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF —E—REF .
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT Tt Tt Tt
Expenses paid by the Group BHAEERBEENT]
on behalf of group companies KEZEH
— intermediate holding — R ER AR
companies 458 916 8 —
— fellow subsidiaries — RRMEAF 16 31 1" 17
— arelated company — R A 6,308 2,923 1,532 262
Expenses paid by group HEAEARRAEE
companies on the Group’s R &H
behalf
— intermediate holding — R R A A
companies 4,498 3,645 (5,967) (4,549)
— fellow subsidiaries — REKB A — = (1) (7)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEBEEZETERABZME (BFEME7FTH
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in note 7 and the BB [FIANA A 30 2 B8 K MY ot 8 AT B
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: METE=FTEESXNZHIE) 0T -
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Short-term employee benefits i EEEF 17,110 17,420
Post-employment benefits BRES 7412 A 1,681 1,622
18,791 19,042
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). BIeEFT A TEIHM] R (RHIEESD))
[



EEENEEBRARAT —B-ARFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
26 Company — level statement of financial 26 FNF— MBBRAE
position
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—RF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 Tt Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I - BB RERE 371,868 375,557
Interests in leasehold land held for ELEHETEAMBEED
own use under operating leases e g 53,202 54,946
425,070 430,503
Intangible assets EmREEE 4,781 4,781
Investments in subsidiaries M B A R RS 624,192 630,148
1,054,043 1,065,432
Current assets RBEE
Inventories PN 33,470 31,696
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K H A BR1E 48,902 57,456
Amounts due from holding companies & YERZ A &)
and fellow subsidiaries KEZXNBARRE 8,390 7,131
Amount due from a subsidiary JE KT BB A B BRIE — 130
Amounts due from related companies  fEYLE:E A 7] BRIE 1,532 262
Bank deposits RITIFER 46,602 15,502
Cash and cash equivalents RekERELIEE 72,329 96,134
211,225 208,311
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FERHE 5 R E A BRIE (41,354) (45,754)
Loan from an intermediate holding R ERA R Z B
company. (25,448) =
Amounts due to holding companies FEHZERE A A
and fellow subsidiaries PRSNGSR (1,586) (983)
Amounts due to related companies BT RAE A FIERIA (2,604) (891)
(70,992) (47,628)
Net current assets REBEEFRE 140,233 160,683
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26 Company — level statement of financial 26 FNF — MEBKAE®®
position (Continued)
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
Note $'000 $'000
BaE F Tt
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERGBHERS 1,194,276 1,226,115
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from an intermediate holding RN AT 2B
company (165,410) (190,747)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETH B A R)BRIE (557,989) (558,001)
Retirement benefit liabilities RIKEFEE (17,844) (26,939)
(741,243) (775,687)
NET ASSETS EEZFE 453,033 450,428
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #E 22(a)
Share capital R 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H A 200,509 197,904
TOTAL EQUITY HESAAEE 453,033 450,428
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on %%E@%%@E@:%*tiiﬂ —+rH A
24 February 2017. IR RET)E -

L

Ramon S. Ang BE Ramon G. Torralba s
Director BE Director BE
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27 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 27 EERREZERALATF
At 31 December 2016, the directors consider the immediate parent RZE—RE+A=1+—H BFRAK
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation SEMNEES AR EREKIERAT DA
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia 37 9% F A R A &) & Top Frontier Investment
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Holdings, Inc. ¢ 37 3 K 4 BR & &1 58 & 4 5 i
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. X321 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements BIJ 5 JE 72 B R0 B+ fift A 32 - Top Frontier
available for public use. Investment Holdings, Inc. 48 2481 #& X ¥ 1A

BRI o
28 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 28 EHEGERRBE_E—XE+=

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative

1 January 2017

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments and new standards is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out
on pages 64 to 127, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flow
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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BBENRBERAERA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &M #Z BBl 3R &

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations

AR - BBERRE — BEREEBNETRE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 74-76

AR RIBIREAM T 11 RE 742 76 AV FHHE

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERS L

In view of the loss incurred by the Group’s Hong Kong brewery
operations, management considered that indicators of
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in Hong Kong brewing operations existed at 31 December
2016.

ENEREEREEAEKEENEE  ERERRN_ZE—7
FTZA=+—"HESERREEBEXRBNOME - #aER
BFERETR

&5 O

Accordingly, management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in the Hong Kong brewery operations, at 31 December 2016,
which was assessed by preparing a value in use calculation
based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

it - EBEFER_E—"FT+ZA=T—RESERARE
BEAEGOYE  WERREELTZTERE - WERERR
WeRDMREUEAEBETEF AT

The discounted cash flow analysis used to assess the risk
of impairment was based on a number of assumptions,
which included revenue forecasts and estimations of future
discounts, future variable costs and fixed costs as well as
future inflation in Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The
determination of these assumptions requires management
to exercise significant judgement and is subject to inherent
uncertainty.
ARFERERRAERBSRA T NENRZEER - 21
WATERI R AR HER - RIRATZ KA REEKARARES
RRBIRERFERE - ELERENEERTEEREELEXR
FlETAXBREBN T EEEE ©

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery
operations included the following:

BPIRHETE - MR NERE — BEREXRBNETDRENS
HREFEENTAE
o engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us

in assessing the methodology applied by management
in its discounted cash flow analysis with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

o EAERMIABEEMBDHEPELERITER R
BHEEECHCMRBE RO M EAN T EETT
B

o critically challenging the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its preparation
of the discounted cash flow analysis by referring to
industry and other available third party information,
the recent financial performance of the Hong Kong
brewery operations and management’s budgets and
plans for the operations in 2017 and beyond;
DETEREMAIERME=FEL  BBRBER
TN BRRRERBER S+ FRHEBEBRT
EMEERETEIE  BEFGEREERNRREARR
MR AN A RE SR 3R N FR0RI

. engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the discount rate used by management in
its discounted cash flow analysis by recalculating an
appropriate discount rate with reference to available
financial information of other listed brewing companies
in Asia Pacific and considering region and industry
specific risk premiums;

. BAERMBAEEER - BEBRMER2ERNRE
fth = 7 R 2 B AT EX A B 7 BRI B R [ ER AT
BERRAEEREMAENEEMRE  NHEEE
MREB BRI S DA A R BEER ZE TR
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AR - BBERRE —BEEREERNEERE (8)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations (Continued)

E 2R A B RAN T 11 RETAE 76 ARV EETHE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 74-76

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations as
a key audit matter because of the significant judgement
and estimation required to be exercised by management in
forecasting future revenue, future variable costs and future
fixed costs and in determining an appropriate discount rate
and also because of the magnitude of the assets under
consideration and the possibility of management bias in the
selection of the key assumptions.

BIPIGETEEE - HEE RERE — BEBRAEKO B ER
ERBRETEE - WHBHRNERETRRRKKA - RRAZ
PR B R 2R [ TE A AN DA I 7B T 3 B 3R R S ZR VR HH B X 1
5t TERGEZEENREREREEENRMRERFIE
fmEa -

BRETEE BREEBFBEEEXPTEELE
We identified assessing potential impairment of property, | comparing the actual performance and results of the

Hong Kong brewery operations for the current year
with the key assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow analysis for
the prior year to assess the accuracy of management'’s
forecasting process and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether they have been
considered in the current year's key assumptions and
forecasts,

KEBBBERRNAMBRFENERRE RFERE
BENBEFENDMRRERES TR RMEEE
BRa% RFERIMEATLLE - LAY & 18 [ 78R A2 Fr 6 ZE 1
ERFEFBNOEMERESNREA RN A REE

MEARBELBAEFRECER LMEAZNERE
ERER
o performing sensitivity analyses for the discount rate,

sales growth rate and operating costs in the discounted
cash flow analysis and considering in greater detail
the information used to derive the most sensitive
assumptions and whether there were any indicators of
management bias in their selection.
HEMRBESROMAOBIRE  HERRERLEK
TETHREDN - WERE I EHRBREFERD
FEHEEMN  MEREMNRERELATMARENTE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT &M #Z BBl 3R &

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives

il BAREREEALR

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 77

B 2Rk E B SR I ot 23() ) 5 77 BRI & 5T

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERS L

The Group offers a variety of discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives, including regular trade discounts,
volume rebates and price support, to its customers in the
normal course of business. These costs are accounted for as a
deduction from revenue.
BRETE—MEBBEFRMATPREHZEN - A EEE
BE - BETHARSIT - HEREE REREEL o SLEKAR
RN

A large proportion of the discounts, rebates and promotional
incentives had not been paid or utilised at 31 December
2016 and relevant accruals are either included in trade and
other payables or off-set against trade receivables when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amount and intends to settle on a net basis.

REAHF - BAREEEER-TE—R"F+-A=+—80#
RIASFER - RABBIRERARESEBERES A K
EHRREE - WHIDFREELERT ARNES REMIRIE
sk BRI E 5 RRIE G AR N o

We identified accounting for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the amounts to the Group s gross profit
and because there are different schemes and arrangements
for each major customer, some of which can be complex in
nature, which increases the risk of error in the calculation
thereof.

B - BAREEEEARRR ABERETSIE - LD
HRNEHSBEEESEREFNNERBN RBERESEEERP
KATRNARIZY: - MBoERER - (MG MEGEHER
By &R o

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives included the following:
BAEHESTH - BAREEEEAENENIEFEEATH
m :

o evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over recording
discounts, rebates and promotional incentives;
FHEITH - B REEEENEHETEANETEANIE
THIERET C BT REER UL

o analysing the Group's historical data for discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives to determine an
expectation for the current year, based on the current
year’'s sales amounts, comparing our expectation
with the actual figures recorded by the Group and
investigating unusual items or trends;
AMERESOTN  BAREREENBEIEE - U
ERAMBEENHERET AN RFEENTER - I
BRMOTEREE R ER SN ERRTETHLUR
AETSHHEB LB

o comparing the accruals for discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives made by management as at 31
December 2015 with the actual discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives paid/payable to customers to
assess the accuracy of the prior year's accruals and
making enquiries of management as to the reasons for
any significant under or over provision and assessing
whether they have been considered in the current
year's accruals,
BEEERN-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—BELHHIN
BAREEESTREBAREN EAREFHERTT
0 BEAEREEESETER Ui EFEIRE
RHERE - URERERBETERBENREAR
ERBELEARTEREEANREENIRERR
EAEERE A E
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il EREREREEALR (B)

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives (Continued)

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 77
B A TR 2300 R E 77 BRIE TR

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREETEEEERPEERES L

selecting a statistical sample of discounts, rebates
and promotion incentives for the year and comparing
each selected item with the relevant sales contract
and customer agreement, recalculating the expense
payable by the Group and assessing whether the
amounts had been recorded in the appropriate
accounting period;

HERNFH - BAREREESETHERESERE
HHAERBEESALETPHRELE  ENtEE
EERENBRAURTERBERSECHENEENE
HAfE

developing an expectation of the year end accruals
for major customers based on purchases for the
year, expenses paid during the year and the credit
terms agreed with respective customers, comparing
the actual accruals with our expectations, enquiring
of management as to the reasons for any significant
differences and assessing whether they have been
considered in the current year’ s accruals;
ERFAREE FAENEBEANRESEPHBEDN
BEGRF  HEXFEXPHNERTREAELEDY - #
ERREREBMNERETLER  REATWNE
REFEH RA R E 2 E VEH & 50 DA KT h 7 & TE AR B
BEERNREARESEERE LA E

comparing subsequent actual settlement of discounts,
rebates and promotional incentives with the
corresponding amounts accrued as at the year end to
assess the recording of accruals as at year end; and
ST B REEEENERERSEE RE RAME
SHRSFHETHR - UFHEFRFHRERNGHE &
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i ERREREEALRK (B)

Accounting for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives (Continued)

AR A BRI 23() R 5 77 BB & a R

Refer to note 23(f) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 77

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERS L

° scrutinising journals processed during the year relating
to discounts, rebates and promotional incentives and
selecting a sample of these based on pre-determined
risk based criteria the details of which were compared
with the relevant underlying documentation

. FHRESFREEAETTN - B REEESRED
BT UARERBAETHREREERERR - &
SHIEC ELAERE AR S ARSI THI L -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Cconclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BEHMARE RS MERRREHRE

(43
( 4 )
A=/

ERB(EBETER) ETETBEF - R
PERTEEHE - RTTHEREREE - M

Jh e

. BRI M EF G R ERFE SR R M G B A B
BMEAFEEAHERRANRE - Rt R
HITEZFARE S LR - A RER
FRMEENELEE FARMABERN
Hit o ANEGFAIaE S bR - g - &
BER - ERERUL - OEBRAEHEHZ
Lt HBEREEE IR AR M S M E R
AP E B = R R RE B R AR MG 2K
MBS R A RS o

. TR RN BES - ARFHEER
MERHZR - BB M IEE SR B REE
HEBREERER -

. AEBEEMRAEABERNEE T RED
SETATMERE R EN QIR -

. LHEERAKELE ST ERNRE A
&R o RBFAIERNETERRE @ BES
BHFERFHEIBRNBMOERNTEE
o e A e B R H ERENRFELE6
NELERERE - IRBFIBASFEER
THEEN - I BEERBENRETIRE
ERETIBEAVBRPEREEE - R
ERRNEETR  MRMEEHRIE
REER - HAINBRIEENZEENRE
B IEFRES R R ERRE © AT - KK FR
HENA B EHERE T ELE -

. AHBSRE M RARNBEIR TN - B
MAR - BREWKE  ULEEMBHRERE
BRI ZMEIR -

. FEREANERIEFTHNIEESE
Be  EENERAEE  AEHERSH
BHREREREBL - RAAEEREETD
A~ EEBMEIT - RAIRER B RARE

EREE-

135



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
s0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 February 2017
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GROUP PROPERTIES E£EY)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follow: AEBZ EFESYEFBNOT :

Location Existing use Term of lease

e B BEAR Y

Major property held for investment
BERENIEME

San Miguel Industrial Building Warehouse rental Medium-term
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BB MABRKER9-115% sEaME R HA
ENTEKRE
|
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB E

140

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—B-XE —E-A8F —E-mF —E—=F —E—CF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr F Fr T T
(restated)
(BE&E7)
Results 4
Revenue WA 541,427 569,502 728,640 687,093 686,362
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAI R (E518) 5,927 (16,053) 37,227 22,283 230,009
Income tax credit/(charge) FTE et A/ (i) 778 (856) (233) 3,541 (3,033)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF,/ (BE) 6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824 226,976
Attributable to: FE(HEAT :
— Equity shareholders — AAFRERFAA
of the Company 8,654 (16,074) 35,323 26,010 237,655
— Non-controlling interests — IR (1,949) (835) 1,671 (186) (10,679)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH,/ (FR) 6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824 226,976
Earnings/(loss) per share FRET (FE)
— Basic (cents) — HAR () 2 @ 9 7 64
Cash dividends per share (cents) FIRESRE (L) — — 2 1 =
Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Property, plant and equipment, M - HER
investment properties Rl BEWER
and leasehold land S+ 584,806 597,381 621,309 635,893 654,678
Intangible assets B BE 5,139 5,163 5187 5,183 5,426
Net current assets EEERE 154,362 162,371 108,040 114,032 34,953
Total assets less current liabilities  @&ERREIAE 744,307 764,915 734,536 755,113 695,057
Retirement benefit liabilities RINMEFIBE (17,844) (26,939) (20,115) (17,660) (34,534)
Deferred tax liabilities EERERE (2,969) (2,243) (2,487) (2,938) (3,599)
Bank loan RITER — = — — (145,092)
Loan from an intermediate BAERARZER
holding company (165,410) (190,747) (139,985) (190,837) —
Net assets EETE 558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678 511,836
Capital and reserves BRAR e
Share capital: nominal value &R - EE — — — 186,785 186,785
Other statutory capital reserves HiykEEARE - = = 65,739 65,739
252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves Hoth % 332,687 319,516 347,386 320,897 287,926
Total equity attributable to equity RARIERIZTEA
shareholders of the Company (R 585,211 572,040 599,910 573,421 540,450
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R R (27,127) (27,054) (27,961) (29,743) (28,614)
Total equity ERBE 558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678 511,836
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